AGENDA

COUNTY OF KERN
COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PARTNERSHIP (CCP)
CCP FULL MEMBERSHIP (Referred to as “CCP”)
CCP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (Referred to as “Executive Committee”)

5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite #100
Bakersfield, California 93309

Regular Meeting
Wednesday, June 12, 2024

8:30 A.M.

All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review by contacting the office of the Kern County
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California 93305 during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m.
to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding County recognized holidays, following the posting of the agenda.
The agenda is posted on-line at www.kernprobation.org.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
(Government Code §54953.2)

Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Community
Corrections Partnership (CCP) or the CCP Executive Committee may request assistance at the Kern County
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California, or by calling (661) 868-4100. Every effort will be
made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative
formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible.

CCP TO CONVENE

CCP Members: Chief William Dickinson, Court Executive Officer Tara Leal (designee for Judge Bradshaw),
District Attorney Cynthia Zimmer, Public Defender Peter Kang, Sheriff Donny Youngblood, Director Alison
Burrowes, Police Chief Greg Terry, Administrator Ana Olvera, Director Lito Morillo, Executive Director Tom
Corson, Supervisor Leticia Perez, Chief Workforce Development Officer Aaron Ellis, Superintendent John
Mendiburu, Victim Services Coordinator Kayla Pinkston

ROLL CALL:

NOTE: COVID protection protocols will be followed in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local
orders.

CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A “CA” ARE
CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL BY STAFF AND WILL BE APPROVED
BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR PUBLIC WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK
QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN THE LISTED SEQUENCE
WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SHOWN
IN CAPS AFTER EACH ITEM.

CA-
1) Minutes from CCP Meeting of March 13, 2024 — APPROVE




Agenda — Community Corrections Partnership Page 2
Regular Meeting 06/12/24

2)

3)

4)

CA-
5)

CA-
6)

CA-
7)

8)

9)

Public Presentations

The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items
are discussed by the CCP. This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the CCP
on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the CCP. CCP members may respond
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification and, through
the CCP, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the CCP at
a later meeting. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL
YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU

Chairperson’s Report (Chief Dickinson)
General update and/or information on AB 109 Realignment activities (Fiscal Impact: None) —
MAKE PRESENTATION; NO ACTION REQUIRED

CCP Committee Member Announcements or Reports

CCP members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s activities. They
may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a matter
of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) — MAKE ANNOUNCEMENTS OR
REPORTS

FY 2023-24 3rd Quarter — Data Trackers
Submission of data trackers for AB 109 funded departments/programs for FY 2023-24, January 1,
2024 through March 31, 2024 (Fiscal Impact: None) — RECEIVE AND FILE

Termination of Community-Based Organization (CBO) Agreement 656-2022 with Minnie Marvels
Sober Living for Women and Children

Proposed retroactive termination of Agreement 656-2022 to provide Sober Living Environment
Services for female AB 109 individuals effective April 27, 2024 and re-designate balance of funds
after final invoice is paid and funds are returned to the CBO program account (Fiscal Impact. Amount
Determined Upon Final Payment) — MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
FOR APPROVAL TO ACCEPT LETTER OF TERMINATION AND AUTHORIZE SUBMISSION TO
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REQUESTING TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

Authorization to Enter into Emergency Personal/Professional Services Adgreements (PPSA) to
Provide Sober-Living Environment Services to Female AB 109 Participants

Request authorization to utilize unspent funds from the Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and
Children agreement to provide sober-living housing for female AB 109 participants (Fiscal Impact:
$130,000) — MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE AND
AUTHORIZE STAFF TO ENTER INTO PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS
(PPSA) AS NEEDED

Community-Based Organization (CBO) Annual Report, January 1, 2023 — December 31, 2023
Presentation by Lt. Jaime Hernandez, Sheriff's Office, regarding the CY 2023 Community-Based
Organization (CBO) Annual Report for January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 (Fiscal Impact:
None) — MAKE PRESENTATION; RECEIVE AND FILE

Funding Proposals for FY 2024-25 AB 109 Carryforward Reserves

Present and discuss proposals for FY 2024-25 AB 109 carryforward reserves [Fiscal Impact:
$4,597,829.56 ($15,467,929.56 carryforward reserves - $10,888,100.00 allocated to Contingency)]
— PRESENT PROPOSALS; MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO
APPROVE PROPOSALS




Agenda — Community Corrections Partnership Page 3
Regular Meeting 06/12/24
a) Sheriff

10)

Request carryforward reserves for body worn cameras, docking stations, intercoms in jail
cells, costs associated with implementation of investigations and K9 unit in detentions, and

cameras for transportation buses (Fiscal Impact: $1,919,391) —

b) Probation

Request carryforward reserves for building infrastructure and improvements for AB 109
and Adult Supervision Divisions’ new shared location (Fiscal Impact: $1,000,000) —

c) Behavioral Health & Recovery Services

Request carryforward reserves to sustain program operations of the Recovery Station

(Fiscal Impact: $1,000,000) —

d) Community-Based Organizations (CBO)

Request carryforward reserves for future CBO Program RFP to provide community-based
services for AB 109 individuals (Fiscal Impact: Up to $4,597,829.56) —

e) Veterans Service

Request carryforward reserves to supplement partial salaries of new employees and
accredited Veterans Claims Representative and additional technology devices (Fiscal

Impact: $60,500) —

f) Contingency

Request carryforward reserves for unexpected expenses and/or additional items the CCP
chooses to fund (Fiscal Impact: Up to $4,597,829.56) —

County of Kern Public Safety Act Implementation Plan and Allocations for FY 2024-25

Discuss County of Kern Public Realignment Act Implementation Plan and allocation requests for FY
2024-25 (Fiscal Impact: $64,047,649 Base) — DISCUSS PLAN AND ALLOCATIONS (TO BE
PRESENTED IN ORDER LISTED BELOW); MAKE ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATIONS TO
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE THE PLAN AND SUBMIT TO THE BOARD OF

SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL

Department/Organization Percentages i?lgngit ::

Sheriff 39.27% $25,151,512
Probation 35.56% $22,775,344
Behavioral Health & Recovery Services 13.56% $8,684,862
District Attorney 4.28% $2,741,240
Community-Based Organizations (CBO) Program 2.73% $1,748,501
Public Defender 2.14% $1,370,620
Employers’ Training Resource 1.38% $883,858
Street Interdiction Team 0.68% $435,524
Veterans 0.27% $172,929
Contingency 0.13% $83,259
Total Requested 100.00% $64,047.649

Total Available $64,047.649

a) Sheriff

Request funds for maintaining current staffing and service levels (Fiscal Impact:

$25,151,512) —



Agenda — Community Corrections Partnership Page 4
Regular Meeting 06/12/24
b) Probation

f)

Request funds to continue AB 109 operations and activities (Fiscal Impact: $22,775,344)

Behavioral Health & Recovery Services
Request funds for staffing and program costs (Fiscal Impact: $8,684,862) —

District Attorney
Request funds for continued efforts related to AB 109 realignment services (Fiscal Impact:

$2,741,240) —

Community- Based Organizations (CBO)
Request funds for future CBO Program RFP to provide community-based services for AB
109 individuals (Fiscal Impact: $1,748,501) —

Public Defender
Request funds for staffing costs and operational expenses (Fiscal Impact: $1,370,620) —

Employers’ Training Resource (ETR)
Request funds for staffing costs, participant training opportunities, and paid work
experience (Fiscal Impact: $883,858) —

Street Interdiction Team (SIT)
Request funds for multi-departmental regional law enforcement task force operations
(Fiscal Impact: $435,524) —

Veterans Service
Request funds for continued efforts related to serving the AB 109 population (Fiscal Impact:
$172,929) -

Contingency
Request funds for unexpected expenses and/or additional items the CCP chooses to fund

(Fiscal Impact: $ 83,259) —

11) Next CCP Meeting

>

Wednesday, September 11, 2024, 8:30 a.m. — DISCUSS; ANNOUNCE

12) ADJOURN AS CCP

CONVENE TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Executive Committee Members: Chief Dickinson, Court Executive Officer Leal (designee for
Bradshaw), District Attorney Zimmer, Public Defender Kang, Sheriff Youngblood, Director Burrowes, Police
Chief Terry

ROLL CALL:

Judge



Agenda — Community Corrections Partnership Page 5
Regular Meeting 06/12/24

CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A “CA” ARE
CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL BY STAFF AND WILL BE APPROVED
BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR PUBLIC WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK
QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN THE LISTED SEQUENCE
WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SHOWN
IN CAPS AFTER EACH ITEM.

CA-
1) Minutes from Executive Committee Meeting of March 13, 2024 — APPROVE

2) Public Presentations

The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items
are discussed by the CCP. This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the CCP
on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the CCP. CCP members may respond
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification and, through
the CCP, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the CCP at
a later meeting. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL
YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU

3) Executive Committee Member Announcements or Reports
CCP members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s activities. They
may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a matter
of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) — MAKE ANNOUNCEMENTS OR
REPORTS

CA-

4)  Termination of Community-Based Organization (CBO) Adgreement 656-2022 with Minnie Marvels
Sober Living for Women and Children
Discuss recommendation by full CCP regarding retroactive termination of Agreement 656-2022 with
Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and Children to provide AB 109 related services effective
April 27, 2024 and re-designate balance of funds after final invoice is paid and funds are returned to
the CBO Program account (Fiscal Impact: Amount Determined Upon Final Payment) — CONSIDER
RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP; APPROVE; AND AUTHORIZE CHAIR TO SUBMIT TO
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL

CA-

5)  Authorization to Enter into Emergency Personal/Professional Services Agreements (PPSA) to
Provide Sober Living Environment Services to Female AB 109 Participants
Discuss recommendation by full CCP requesting approval for $130,000 from the CBO Program to
provide Sober Living housing for female AB 109 participants (Fiscal Impact: $130,000) —- CONSIDER
RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP; AUTHORIZE STAFF TO ENTER INTO
PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS (PPSA) AS NEEDED

6) Funding Proposals for FY 2024-25 AB 109 Carryforward Reserves
Discuss recommendation by full CCP for FY 2024-25 AB 109 carryforward reserves [Fiscal Impact:
$4,597,829.56 ($15,467,929.56 carryforward reserves - $10,888,100.00 allocated to Contingency)]
CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP; APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIR TO SUBMIT TO
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL




Agenda — Community Corrections Partnership Page 6
Regular Meeting 06/12/24
a) Sheriff

7)

f)

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for carryforward reserves (Fiscal
Impact: $1,919,391) —

Probation
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for carryforward reserves (Fiscal
Impact: $1,000,000) —

Behavioral Health & Recovery Services
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for carryforward reserves (Fiscal
Impact: $1,000,000) —

Community-Based Organizations (CBO)
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for carryforward reserves (Fiscal
Impact: Up to $4,597,829.56) —

Veterans Service
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for carryforward reserves (Fiscal
Impact: $60,500) —

Contingency
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for carryforward reserves (Fiscal

Impact: Up to $ 4,597,829.56) —

County of Kern Public Safety Act Implementation Plan and Allocations for FY 2024-25

Discuss recommendation by full CCP regarding County of Kern Public Realignment Act
Implementation Plan and allocation requests for FY 2024-25 (Fiscal Impact: $64,047,649 Base) —
CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP; APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIR TO SUBMIT TO
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL

Department/Organization Percentages i?l(c])z‘:fit::

Sheriff 39.27% $25,151,512
Probation 35.56% $22,775,344
Behavioral Health & Recovery Services 13.56% $8,684,862
District Attorney 4.28% $2,741,240
Community-Based Organizations (CBO) Program 2.73% $1,748,501
Public Defender 2.14% $1,370,620
Employers’ Training Resource 1.38% $883,858
Street Interdiction Team 0.68% $435,524
Veterans 0.27% $172,929
Contingency 0.13% $83,259
Total Requested 100.00% $64,047,649

Total Available $64,047,649

a)

Sheriff
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds (Fiscal Impact:
$25,151,512) —

Probation
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds (Fiscal Impact:
$22,775,344) —



Agenda — Community Corrections Partnership
Regular Meeting

Page 7
06/12/24

8)

9)

c)

f)

Behavioral Health & Recovery Services
Consider recommendation by full CCP
$8,684,862) —

District Attorney
Consider recommendation by full CCP

$2,741,240) —

Community- Based Organizations (CBO)
Consider recommendation by full CCP
$1,748,501) —

Public Defender
Consider recommendation by full CCP
$1,370,620) —

Employers’ Training Resource (ETR)
Consider recommendation by full CCP
$883,858) —

Street Interdiction Team (SIT)
Consider recommendation by full CCP
$435,524) —

Veterans Service
Consider recommendation by full CCP
$172,929) -

Contingency

regarding

regarding

regarding

regarding

regarding

regarding

regarding

request

request

request

request

request

request

request

for

for

for

for

for

for

for

funds

funds

funds

funds

funds

funds

funds

(Fiscal

(Fiscal

(Fiscal

(Fiscal

(Fiscal

(Fiscal

(Fiscal

Impact:

Impact:

Impact:

Impact:

Impact:

Impact:

Impact:

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds (Fiscal Impact $ 83,259)

Next CCP Meeting

» Wednesday, September 11, 2024, immediately following full CCP meeting — DISCUSS;

ANNOUNCE

ADJOURN AS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE



CCP ltem #1 / EC Item #1
MINUTES

COUNTY OF KERN
COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PARTNERSHIP (CCP)
CCP FULL MEMBERSHIP (Referred to as “CCP”)
CCP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (Referred to as “Executive Committee”)

5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite #100
Bakersfield, California 93309

Regular Meeting
Wednesday, March 13, 2024

8:30 A.M.

All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review by contacting the office of the Kern County
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California 93305 during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m.
to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding County recognized holidays, following the posting of the agenda.
The agenda is posted on-line at www.kernprobation.org.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
(Government Code §54953.2)

Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Community
Corrections Partnership (CCP) or the CCP Executive Committee may request assistance at the Kern County
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California, or by calling (661) 868-4100. Every effort will be
made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative
formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible.

CCP Meeting called to order by Chief Dickinson at 8:30 A.M.

CCP Members: Chief William Dickinson, Court Executive Officer Tara Leal (designee for Judge Bradshaw),
District Attorney Cynthia Zimmer, Public Defender Peter Kang, Sheriff Donny Youngblood, Director Alison
Burrowes, Police Chief Greg Terry, Administrator Ana Olvera, Director Lito Morillo, Executive Director Tom
Corson, Supervisor Leticia Perez, Chief Workforce Development Officer Aaron Ellis, Superintendent John
Mendiburu, Victim Services Coordinator Kayla Pinkston

ROLL CALL: All members present except for the following, District Attorney Cynthia Zimmer (Joseph Kinzel
for District Attorney Zimmer), Sheriff Donny Youngblood (Larry McCurtain for Sheriff Youngblood), Director
Alison Burrowes, Administrator Ana Olvera, Director Lito Morillo (Limbania Sandoval for Director Morillo),
Supervisor Perez, Superintendent John Mendiburu (Amanda Thomas for Superintendent Mendiburu)

NOTE: COVID protection protocols will be followed in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local
orders.

CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A “CA” ARE
CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL BY STAFF AND WILL BE APPROVED
BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR PUBLIC WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK
QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN THE LISTED SEQUENCE
WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SHOWN
IN CAPS AFTER EACH ITEM.




Minutes — Community Corrections Partnership Page 2
Regular Meeting 03/13/24

CA-
1)

2)

3)

Minutes from CCP Meeting of December 13, 2023 — APPROVE

MOTIONED TO APPROVE

Public Comment:

NO ONE HEARD

Corson-Kinzel: 11 — Ayes; 3 — Absent (Burrowes, Olvera, Perez)
MOTION PASSED

Public Presentations

The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items
are discussed by the CCP. This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the CCP
on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the CCP. CCP members may respond
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification and, through
the CCP, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the CCP at
a later meeting. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL
YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU

JANICE MARVEL, MINNIE MARVELS SOBER LIVING FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN, HEARD
INTRODUCING TWO PARTICIPANTS TO SHARE THEIR EXPERIENCES.

AMANDA DOLLMAN, PARTICIPANT AT MINNIE MARVELS, HEARD REGARDING HER
PROGRAM SUCCESS AND PRAISE FOR MINNIE MARVELS.

KISSI STAPLES, PARTICIPANT AT MINNIE MARVELS, HEARD REGARDING HER PROGRAM
SUCCESS AND PRAISE FOR MINNIE MARVELS.

LYNN HUCKABY, FREEDOM HOUSE RECOVERY HOMES, HEARD REGARDING OPPOSITION
TO SECTION 6, LICENSING, CERTIFICATIONS, AND QUALIFICATIONS, ITEM D, OF THE CBO
CONTRACT WHICH STATES “STAFF MUST NOT HAVE FELONY CONVICTIONS ON THEIR
RECORD WITHIN THE PAST 18 MONTHS OF THE DATE OF EMPLOYMENT OR UNDER ANY
ACTIVE FORM OF INCARCERATION OR SUPERVISION.” HE NOTED THAT IT DOES NOT SAY
IN THE GUIDELINES THE AMOUNT OF TIME A PERSON HAS TO BE CLEAN. CHIEF DICKINSON
STATED THAT THE CCP HAS REFERRED THE ISSUE TO COUNTY COUNSEL FOR
CLARIFICATION.

ERIC MARQUEZ HEARD REGARDING HIS SOBRIETY AND SUCCESS AT FREEDOM HOUSE
RECOVERY HOMES.

DEANNA ACKERMAN HEARD REGARDING HER SOBRIETY WHILE PARTICIPATING AT
FREEDOM HOUSE RECOVERY HOMES, EARNING MULTIPLE EDUCATONAL DEGREES, AND
THANKED THE CCP FOR THE OPPORTUNITIES AND SUPPORT SHE RECEIVED.

JEFF BELLISSIMO, A LICENSED CLINICAL SOCIAL WORKER WITH SECOND CHANCE AT LIFE
("SECOND CALL"), HEARD REGARDING REENTRY SERVICES PROVIDED BY SECOND CALL
AND HIS SOBRIETY.

Chairperson’s Report (Chief Dickinson)
General update and/or information on AB 109 Realignment activities (Fiscal Impact: None) —

CHIEF DICKINSON ANNOUNCED THAT THE FY 2024-25 ANNUAL PUBLIC SAFETY ACT
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AND REQUESTS FOR BASE FUNDING WILL BE DISCUSSED AT THE
JUNE 12, 2024 CCP MEETING.



Minutes — Community Corrections Partnership Page 3
Regular Meeting 03/13/24

4)

CA-
o)

6)

7)

CCP Committee Member Announcements or Reports

CCP members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s activities. They
may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a matter
of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) —

-NO PRESENTATIONS MADE

FY 2023-24 2nd Quarter — Data Trackers
Submission of data trackers for AB 109 funded departments/programs for FY 2023-24, October 1,
2023 through December 31, 2023 (Fiscal Impact: None) —

MOTIONED TO RECEIVE AND FILE

Public Comment:

NO ONE HEARD

Corson-Kinzel: 11 — Ayes; 3 — Absent (Burrowes, Olvera, Perez)
MOTION PASSED

Funding Proposals for Additional FY 2022-23 AB 109 Growth Funds

Present and discuss proposals for FY 2022-23 AB 109 Growth funds [Fiscal Impact: $991,129
[$1,560,823 ($1,734,248-10%)-$569,694 ($632,993-10%)] less 10% County Innovation Fund) —
PRESENTATION MADE

a) CBO Program
Request to allocate Growth funds to the CBO Fund for future programs and services for

AB 109 individuals (Fiscal Impact: $991,129) —

MOTIONED TO MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE
GROWTH FUND ALLOCATION OF $991,129 TO THE CBO PROGRAM FUND

Public Comment:

NO ONE HEARD

ROLL CALL VOTE: Dickinson — Yes; Leal — Abstain; Zimmer (Kinzel for Zimmer) — Yes; Kang — Yes;
Youngblood (McCurtain for Youngblood) — Yes; Burrowes — Absent; Terry — Yes; Morillo (Sandoval
for Morillo) — Yes; Corson — Yes; Perez — Absent; Ellis — Yes; Mendiburu (Thomas for Mendiburu) —
Yes; Pinkston — Yes

Corson-Ellis: 10 — Ayes; 1 — Abstain (Leal); 3 — Absent (Burrowes, Olvera, Perez)

MOTION PASSED

Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) FY 2021-22 and FY 2023-24 Community
Corrections Partnership AB 109 Planning Funds

Make determination for use of FY 2021-22 and FY 2023-24 BSCC CCP Planning Funds (Fiscal
Impact: $400,000) —

a) Make determination for use of FY 2021-22 BSCC CCP Planning Funds (Fiscal Impact:
$200,000) —

b) Make determination for use of FY 2023-24 BSCC CCP Planning Funds (Fiscal Impact:
$200,000) —

MOTIONED TO RECOMMEND TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO ALLOCATE $400,000 FROM FY
2021-22 AND FY 2023-24 BSCC PLANNING FUNDS TO CONTINGENCY

Public Comment:

NO ONE HEARD

ROLL CALL VOTE: Dickinson — Yes; Leal — Abstain; Zimmer (Kinzel for Zimmer) — Yes; Kang — Yes;
Youngblood (McCurtain for Youngblood) — Yes; Burrowes — Absent; Terry — Yes; Olvera — Absent;



Minutes — Community Corrections Partnership Page 4
Regular Meeting 03/13/24

Morillo (Sandoval for Morillo) — Yes; Corson — Yes; Perez — Absent; Ellis — Yes; Mendiburu (Thomas
for Mendiburu) — Yes; Pinkston — Yes

Kinzel-Terry: 10 — Ayes; 1 — Abstain (Leal); 3 — Absent (Burrowes, Olvera, Perez)

MOTION PASSED

8)  Assembly Bill 109 (AB 109) Public Safety Realignment Fund Balance
Presentation by Alex Alva and Joseph Arriola, County Administrative Office, regarding AB 109 Fund
Balance (Fiscal Impact: None) — PRESENTATIONS MADE

MOTIONED TO MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO ALLOCATE
$10,888,100 (APPROXIMATELY TWO MONTHS OF CASHFLOW BASED ON PRIOR YEAR
ACTUAL REVENUE) TO CONTINGENCY AND PROPOSALS FOR THE REMAINING
$4,5697,829.56 CAN BE SUBMITTED AT THE JUNE 12, 2024 CCP MEETING FOR
APPROPRIATION IN THE FY 2024-25 BUDGET

Public Comment:

KAREN BRIEFER, EMPLOYERS’ TRAINING RESOURCE, HEARD REGARDING CLARIFICATION
AS TO ANY DOWNSIDE TO ALLOCATING FUNDS TO CONTINGENCY. CHIEF DICKINSON
RESPONDED THERE IS NO DOWNSIDE TO ALLOCATING FUNDS TO CONTINGENCY.

COMMANDER HERIBERTO TRIGO, DELANO POLICE DEPARTMENT, HEARD REGARDING
ENTITIES ARE DEPENDENT ON FUNDS AND MAY NOT KNOW WHAT FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE
IN CONTINGENCY. HE ASKED IF ALLOCATING FUNDS TO CONTINGENCY AFFECTS
PLANNING AND IF THERE IS A POTENTIAL DOWNSIDE. CHIEF DICKINSON EXPLAINED HOW
BASE FUNDING IS ALLOCATED AND HOW CONTINGENCY ENABLES FLEXIBILITY FOR THE
CCP TO ADDRESS VARIOUS ISSUES.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Dickinson — Yes; Leal — Yes; Zimmer (Kinzel for Zimmer) — Yes; Kang — Yes;
Youngblood (McCurtain for Youngblood) — Yes; Burrowes — Absent; Terry — Yes; Olvera — Absent;
Morillo (Sandoval for Morillo) — Yes; Corson — Yes; Perez — Absent; Ellis — Yes; Mendiburu (Thomas
for Mendiburu) — Yes; Pinkston — Yes

Corson-Ellis: 11 — Ayes; 3 — Absent (Burrowes, Olvera, Perez)

MOTION PASSED

9) Next CCP Meeting

> Wednesday, June 12, 2024, 8:30 a.m. at the Probation Office, 5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite
#100, Bakersfield — ANNOUNCED

10) ADJOURNED AS CCP AT 9:26 A.M.

CONVENE TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AT 9:27 A.M.

Executive Committee Members: Chief Dickinson, Court Executive Officer Leal (designee for Judge
Bradshaw), District Attorney Zimmer, Public Defender Kang, Sheriff Youngblood, Director Burrowes, Police
Chief Terry

ROLL CALL: All members present except for the following, District Attorney Zimmer (Joseph Kinzel for
District Attorney Zimmer), Sheriff Youngblood (Larry McCurtain for Sheriff Youngblood), Director Burrowes

CA-
1)  Minutes from Executive Committee Meeting of September 13, 2023 — APPROVE




Minutes — Community Corrections Partnership Page 5
Regular Meeting 03/13/24

CA-
2)

3)

4)

5)

MOTIONED TO APPROVE

Public Comment:

NO ONE HEARD

Kinzel-McCurtain: 6 — Ayes; 1 — Absent (Burrowes)
MOTION PASSED

Minutes from Executive Committee Meeting of December 13, 2023 — APPROVE

MOTIONED TO APPROVE

Public Comment:

NO ONE HEARD

Kinzel-McCurtain: 6 — Ayes; 1 — Absent (Burrowes)
MOTION PASSED

Public Presentations

The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items
are discussed by the Executive Committee. This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to
address the Executive Committee on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the
Executive Committee. Executive Committee members may respond briefly to statements made or
questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification and, through the Executive Committee,
make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the Executive
Committee at a later meeting. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE
AND SPELL YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD PRIOR TO MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION.
THANK YOU.

-NO PRESENTATIONS MADE

Executive Committee Member Announcements or Reports

Executive Committee members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s
activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have
staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) —

-NO PRESENTATIONS MADE

Funding Proposals for Additional FY 2022-23 AB 109 Growth Funds

Discuss recommendation by full CCP for additional FY 2022-23 AB 109 Growth funds [Fiscal Impact
$991,129 [$1,560,823 ($1,734,248-10%)-$569,694 ($632,993-10%)] less 10% County Innovation
Fund) —

a) CBO Program
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for growth funds (Fiscal Impact:

$991,129) —

MOTIONED TO APPROVE RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP TO ALLOCATE GROWTH FUNDS
OF $991,129 TO THE CBO PROGRAM FUND; AUTHORIZE CHAIR TO SUBMIT TO BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL

Public Comment:

NO ONE HEARD

ROLL CALL VOTE: Dickinson — Yes; Leal — Abstain; Zimmer (Kinzel for Zimmer) — Yes; Kang — Yes;
Youngblood (McCurtain for Youngblood) — Yes; Burrowes — Absent; Terry — Yes

Kinzel-Terry: 5 — Ayes; 1 — Abstain (Leal); 1 — Absent (Burrowes)

MOTION PASSED



Minutes — Community Corrections Partnership Page 6
Regular Meeting 03/13/24

6)

7)

8)

9)

Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) FY 2021-22 and FY 2023-24 Community
Corrections Partnership AB 109 Planning Funds

Discuss recommendation by full CCP regarding use of the BSCC CCP Planning Funds (Fiscal
Impact: $400,000)

MOTIONED TO APPROVE RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP TO ALLOCATE $400,000 FROM
FY 2021-22 AND FY 2023-24 BSCC PLANNING FUNDS TO CONTINGENCY

Public Comment:

NO ONE HEARD

ROLL CALL VOTE: Dickinson — Yes; Leal — Abstain; Zimmer (Kinzel for Zimmer) — Yes; Kang — Yes;
Youngblood (McCurtain for Youngblood) — Yes; Burrowes — Absent; Terry — Yes

Kinzel-Terry: 5 — Ayes; 1 — Abstain (Leal); 1 — Absent (Burrowes)

MOTION PASSED

Assembly Bill 109 (AB 109) Public Safety Realignment Fund Balance
Discuss recommendation by full CCP regarding use of AB 109 fund balance as presented by CAO
(Fiscal Impact: None) —

MOTIONED TO APPROVE RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP TO ALLOCATE $10,888,100
PUBLIC SAFETY REALIGNMENT FUNDS TO CONTINGENCY AND PROPOSALS FOR THE
REMAINING $4,597,829.56 CAN BE SUBMITTED AT THE JUNE 12, 2024 CCP MEETING

Public Comment:

NO ONE HEARD

ROLL CALL VOTE: Dickinson — Yes; Leal — Yes; Zimmer (Kinzel for Zimmer) — Yes; Kang — Yes;
Youngblood (McCurtain for Youngblood) — Yes; Burrowes — Absent; Terry — Yes

Terry-McCurtain: 6 — Ayes; 1 — Absent (Burrowes)

MOTION PASSED

Next Executive Committee Meeting

> Wednesday, June 12, 2024, immediately following full CCP meeting, at the Probation Office,
5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite #100, Bakersfield — ANNOUNCED

ADJOURNED AS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AT 9:32 A M.



‘3uns|dwod Ajjnyssadans syueddiued
£ YHM suoijoesalul dn-mojjoy a1eduaye
ul 3su e sem auayl ‘4oMenb siy; o

2Je2Ia)Y 1VSY

JuswuoJiaug SuiAr] 19qos

%€z :@8ueyd o %
€€2C ve/€T A
ST8'T €z/TT M

sde) pa4

2npDSSY ® UaJp|IyYD) 1suIpby sawil) ‘A12110g
1oNX3as ‘Buryanr an) ‘buiddoupry “4apin -3’1
sagJey) JUSJOIA YUM GSE
Apoisn) uj siaquidip 8ueo g6

auoyd ‘affo ‘plad ‘dwoH -
SL ape|A 10e3u0)

0¢ peojase) aAIY

e 1e AJ9A0D3J JI8Y1 BNUIIUOI 03 3SOYd T paldnpuo) sisa] dilsusH
sjuedipiued SunenpesSay1jo s © I wea) asuodsay-09
LEL'VS $ 1oddns pjiyd padnpay
‘weJsdoud ay3 Sunenpeld moﬂw< -UON %EY EE
Ajnyssanons sjuedpoiued €7 9¢ S91EWU| WOJJ PAAISIaY Salinbul e SIS}IOM | TE/SOUSHIOM VL
yHM pa33|dwod g€ HoYo) o | I
juawieal] asnqgy asueisgns |eryuapisay 19 Suneddijed sajewu| L0v8L'8E $
:9NUOAdY [B)O0L oSeajay MIOM
s9oIA13g uoddng pliyo % SS :siaquiay Bbueo
n:b@@@ g 924n0say Sulules] si2Ao|dw3 01 pa.Iasay 96
%6€ 0L 90§ wsljepuep ﬂ ajews4 % o1 w ﬁ 312N % 06 g wea3o.d Apoisn) [enUIA e pa1s|dwo) L€
|'er op4aT a3y} wody sajepdn
%L Y4 LT Suneyi07 90¢‘'T | ¥98 e [i|elol
96T spag |ier Aiuno) |elol
T S IAed ald|.  %0v 981 1743 S21102JEeN 9Tv 00¢€ 9TT yoJe
adueyd % vz/e€TAd  €T/TTAd Il Hed G89°T uone|ndod Ajleq adesany
60t €0¢ ysien spiains 06¢ 9L¢C V1T Asenugo4
%YC- 43 TCT Aiaqaoy 9/ s1sa.1y Ajleq a8esany
9 T ['er ur sswp oov 88¢ [4N) Asenuer
%E TTL 169 V19 solydesbowaqjuonejndod jrep el  ¥/M  dIA3
144" 98 a3esn |90 A1ajes
%1 9ty (4% Atejgung GE TC 6¢ NNN sjuedionied annoy
T8¢ LLT s34 arewy]
%CC- [4% ¥S adey 06 T0T 86 950€ Od 6€€ 9sed|3Y YoM
4 € 14€1S UO Synessy
ve/st A €T/TT Ad %LC- 8 TT SpIdIWoH 6¢ €€ 514 HSV14 €T S9sed|ay dINg
: SUSPRUT e adueyd % ve/e€TAd  €T/TT A4 | 1ed
#oE ‘le3o1 urasuey) TSowIl) pa1ioday JJIIoyS [40]4 08T 0¢ SOYd 909°9¢ :PaAes spag |lef
: * : JeN go4 uer
Sjuapiouj jier S})e}s swlLy S}e)s 3sally l'er [enyIA

(P20oz ‘L€ y21eiN - p20Z ‘1 A1enuer) sa31enp pig - HZ/EZ Ad
si9)oei] ejeq Huays Ajunon uiay

Nﬁ.ﬁ\\\ﬂd M\vﬂw\.ﬂ

G# Ws}| 400




%6
uoisiniadng Aioyepuey

%61
uoisiniadng Ajunwwo) ases|ay 1sod

‘uolsinedns uoleqoud Uo 8|IyMm UORDIAUOD/UOIEDIPNIPE [BUjWLO Juanbasans v/

'S9SUDYO Pale[as Snup |eUOIPPE PUE ‘Wil B YUM
pawLIE 3)IYMm SDIURISANS P3][041U0I JO UOISSISSOd ‘Uoniunwwe Jo uoissassod ‘uojay e Aq wueasy
€ JO UOIsSassod ‘wiieadly patalsi8alun ue 4o uoissassod yim pagieyd a1am s|enpialpul palsalie
dy1 ynsas e sy -adid sulwelsydweylsw e pue ‘suiwelsydweyisw pazdadsns ‘suoniunwiwe

WISIAIPIO9Y

J0 sadAl 1uauaylp ‘euizeSew Audeded-ySiy e ‘un8puey Q8 JOWA|Od wweg € Pa1edo| SIVIYO
‘Yoseas ayl Sung "y ‘1524033p1y ui 193.41S sdijjiyd N 40 320[g 00T Y3 Ul [|EI SWOY B PSIdNPUOI

SO¥d

91

AYOLVANVIN  MSIY HOIH ANOT3S

. g -

<l 112

uoisiniadng Aq ody ojul pajjosus [ejoL

0z

or

09

08

0oL

LN3T0IA
HOIH

dodd
HOIH

onya
HOIH

117

JLvd3Iaon

73 9¢

oL

0z

ov

09

08

00k
(743

g uun (SO¥d) uoisinedng Allunwiwo) ases|ay 150d a9yl 01 paudisse s192140 ‘Uaenb ayl Suung

Alunwwo) djesg e 0} JUSBWHWWOD

s|els)ay « Ajlweq/Bunualed « Ydoleag/ssauipeay qor « ewnel |
SAISUOdSaY Jopuan) « SBIAISG [BUONEINPT « SOUSIOIA d3sawoq « Buluue|d abieyasiq « uj
-08y9 Ajleq « s|IMS ay/eAubo) « Juswabeuely Asuopy/Bunebpng . ueld abueyn Joineysqg
« JUBLLISSSSY « Juswabeuel) Jabuy « 8SN S2UE)SANS/|OYOI|Y « SIedISYY « Bunsa] asnqy

Vs Aq odv ojul pajjosu3 jejoL

:S9JIAISS Em._wo._n_

(1¥V) Adeiay] Juswaoejday uoissalbby « (1 MIN) Adelay| uoneuoday [eIop «
(o¥1) abuey) e oy Bupuiy ] « (SO]d3) uoisiuadng Ajunwiwio) Ul Sa21j0B1d SAIOSHT «

-S9JIAI9G Welbold

9 Z8

S.0°6

aleola)y pajjo1ug syuedioued

SINOH 321A18S Ajlunwiwon

13ju9) weiboud ynpy

(2yQ) 493uay Bunsoday Aeq

10IA UBIH doud ybiH 6nig ybIH PO Mo

%ET

dd
S
SOidm

%EL
%Ll

%82

%9€

%8S

%04

%S

%9

%L1
%z ?
%G1

%LT
%0¢€

%0

%01

%02

%0€

%0¥

%0S

%09

%0L

0S9

uolsintadng
Aioyepuepy

7999

uoneqoid
Auojag

UoIsiAIedng AJlunwiwio)
asealay 1sod

-1eaA siy3 Jare| Auowsuad uonenpeus (Ndv) Hun SulwwesSoud 3npy |enuue
93U} puane o} payAul aq [|Im Ajlwey 1y pue Jauoizeqold ay] "d1Yyld ¥I0M pue UOIIeAIlOW J3Y JO

9snedaq Jjeis pes| 03 parowoltd sem ays ‘padiy Suiaq Jaye Ajpioys JuswAhojdwa awiy-j|nj uedaq
9ys asnedaq weadoud (1YIN) Adesay] uoneuoday |eso ay3 Jo 1ed pue ‘wesdoud (1y¥y) Adesayl
1uswade|day uoissau88y ‘weudoid (Jp1) @8uey) Joy Supjuiyl ay3 ‘wesdoud (SJ1d3) uoisiauadng
AJunwwWo) Ul SBJ1BI4 DAIIIBYT [BNPIAIPUL HZ Ppaldjdwod ays 'ssadosd 3y3y InoysSnouyy Jagqos
urewsaJ pue Ajjigels puly 01 ajqe sem ays ‘weidoud Jay para|dwod ays siym (I1S) JUBWUOIIAUT
SUIA 49G0S B Ul pasnoy Sem ays ‘OdV Ul UM *(DdV) 493ua) weiSoid 3Npy dyi 01Ul pPa[|oJud
pue (SJ¥d) uoisinuadng Ajlunwwo) asedlay 1504 uo sem Jauoneqoud e ‘yspenb ayy Suung

8JeAIPI9aY 0} YSIY S1apuajjO (VYS) Juswssassy ysiy d1els Aunwwos ay} ojuil uoneibajuIdy [NYSS99INg

¥202 ‘L€ UYdJel - $20z ‘| Asenuer
J9)ienp pIg - ¥2/€T Ad
L¥0d3d advogaHSsva
SHIMOVYL vivad 60l gv

juswiedaqg uoneqold AJuno) uiay




‘BuiiwniBold ¢Q| gy Jepun sponpiApul
o} 8ouppPINB pup poddns J8}O O} SWIDS} 8DIAISS AUDW JO SHOLS

By} SOIDISUOWBP AJNISSEODNS [DNPIAIPUL SIYL “SUOIIDDIPSW | YW jueds )
10 Ulm palidwod Ajjnjsseaons soy pub ‘malalsiul gol Buiioodn uo 78/$ nowy 69z'e$ | pueds junowy
‘Buisnoy a|qois sy [onplAipul ayi ‘poddns Al ybnouy] "sa1oAlas {unoo {unoo
Uioay [prusuw O} IDNPIAIPUL 8y}l PaXul| OS|o Wsdl ADMSIDS ay] L | usiD enbiun S s anbiun
‘spaau juswiiuioddp o U0} uolpLodsunly [0D-IPBW SZlIiN PINOD pessed0.d pPassa00.d
[ONPIAIPUL U} ©INSUS O} $82IN0S3J PUD 92UDRING PaIS0 ADMBLDD L sisenboy S sisonbay Buuioig
“JUsWUIoddD UD JOJ DIUID (1VW) LUSWILDSI] 9DUDISISSY UOILDDIPaN
8y} Of obDMUIl PUD UOHDAIOD [DD-IPS UM [PNPIAIDUL 8y} 8z sADQ 1zl sADQ buyasunod
PBISISSO AlIDIPBWWI WD} ADMSLDS 8] "8sbsjal uodn Abmains :[ouolisuniy Ajp1oads ‘WIS] HI0yS dnoio
O} PajUll SOM [ONPIAIPUL UD ‘UOIIDISDI0DUI O SIOSA N0 ISPV pub |pnplAIpU|
Alojg ss92o0ng s92JAI9§ poddng BuisnoH
$92IN0SvY
Ajgunwwo)
0g (014 (0% (014 0l 0
08 09 or oz 0 o4 boxyun
SUOISSIPY DIMD
€T IPaAISS S|ONPIAIPUl enbiun # SSOJOWOH S9JIAISS
9 SJUSIID MON # uolDISDIDDU| pawi.oju|
uoIssiupy O3d pwnpij|
09 IPBPIAOI] SODIAISS # SO 13V
[ SJUBWISSSSY HW # pabioyosig SOJIAISS
L | :pepubway # mcozoN__nM_Qmo_._ uoypIPSW
. J19JSuUnl| DUILUODU| up JUIDI U»m&
€ SOSLG # PBAISSUO? Sd1 P o1y
€ :SUOIDZIIDIASOH YDASd # S[I0D INOH-IBHY JusWabBDUPW
sNSuUsD JuslD asp>
s19ZI|yn YBIH B s601 9V swpd] asuodsay-0D UOILDV SWjsAS Y}OSH [DjudsW
juswypail
juswijpal] 8ouISH SYuow ¢ lold @ JUSWIHOSI] SDUISE  SYjUOW g | Joudm Japiosig
SdUpbisans  ssejewoy  dsoy UOLDISDIDOU| SSOISWIOH dsoH  uoypieoIOOU| 951 9oUbisqns

L 0 saIbajois
000'L pup $321§oD.I4
ol paspg 92uUspIAg

000C
001 - 000°S :uoypIBaUIDY
€50 6/5°c buyoddng
60€ o 0007 S9DIAIDS

(x1 @duis 4=u :x] Joud g =u) sawod4nQO pup BIPJ ANS (§p=u) sswodNQO pup PP HW

s

‘1006 ANS 104 8N 82ULISANs 8ONPAY () sseusssleuIoY 82npPay (g)
‘suoypzipydsoy dupIYoAsSd 8onpay (zZ) :uonbiadipooul 82npay (1) :STVYOD (ans) Jepiosig asn e2aupisgns pub (HW) UHDSH |piusw

$20Z ‘L€ Y2IOW - $Z0Z ‘| Aonupr :¢ JSUDND $Z/€T Ad wh&%.%w:m..«um\&r “
JNOdIY QIVOTHSVA SYDIOVAL Viva 6019V TVYOIAVHIE 4'




0LE'9 869°S TS B30l
HopIEYT/ET M opigse/ze M HOopEE 22/t M 1opE Te/oz M TORE OT/eT A 9Ly 19y 6L6°€ s3ul|i4 JoueawapsiA
000z SSET 9Tr'Z 5002 s159nbay Joueawapsi
- 79T LEV'T L9TT sgulji4 Auoja4 sjesoL
699°€ 798°€ €ETY sisanbay Auoja
000 09z (234 6.7 JoueawapsiIA - suli
, 68T [0}4 Y44 JOUBBWIPSIA - S1sanbay
[ o L8 LL oL Auoja - s8uiji4 JoeYS
- 0009 1€ 11T 90€ Auoja4 - sysenbay
, 80S 95¢ 9¢ JOUBBWIPSIA - S3ulll
LE69 [ o0t 1123 6TC 86T JoueawapsI|Al - s1sanbay
s3uii4 |esoL - oo0's 69 8 & fuojey - ssup|  359098P
Vit L €9 Auo|a{ - s1sanbay
1Ty vee 208 JOUBBWIPSIA - S3uljl4
HOPIEYZ/ET M HopEer/ce M opE 7/t M LopIE TZ/07 M HopE 07/l M e vos o 10UEBLIAPSIA - sisanbay onelo
: - 1T 80T LET Auoja - s8uiji4 oW
9¢ 0LE SL9 Auoja4 - s3sanbay
F 005 144 1444 oce JOUBBWAPSIIAl - S8U
SeT 9.1 L1C JoueawapsI|Al - s1sanbay
L 000t 19T 112 6T Auoja - sSuijl OuelRa
. St 06¢€ ¥0S Auoja4 - s3sanbay
6817
9T - o0sT ¥95°C 895C 1€0C JoueawapSIIA - ssuljid
0es'T 9€T'T 0L0'T 006 JOUBDWIBPSIIA - S3SaNbay
€181 T8t - o007 €50'T 968 ST8 Auoja4 - sSuiji4 PIeysioed
S0ET v€T'T [374%4 Auoje4 - s3sanbay
r 00T LSL L¥9 €89 JOUBBWAPSIIAl - SBul|i4
413 LTC 0T Joueawapsl|A - sisenbay
s3uiji4 Auojay - oooe €sT L6 €8 Auojey - s8u uoweT/uiny
06T 989 wr Auo|a4 - s1sanbay
170 Wy 130 p4€ 130 puz 130 5T adAL youe.g

¥202 ‘TE Ya1e - ¥2oz ‘T Aenuer
Jauenp pig - ¥Z/€T A4
140d34 aYvogHSva
SYIIDVYL V1vVa 60T 9V
AINYOLLY 1D141SId




%001 %08 %09 %0V %0¢

%T9
%9

%TL

3ley uoiuA3Y

%0

%09 I . 3NOH ATINVE NMOYE

sug
+*3dOH 40 39VL10D

%0L . 0 maN

*NOILIQVYL QYIHL

%S. e 3uvoasam
%9. [N  -3SNOH WO0a33yd
%3, [ S13AYYIAAINNIN
%€8 e sdas
%ve I  v00d aNo
%96 [N SAVMHLvd N3a¥vS

+WOH

Ajnwey

umoug Sdils aIedisam

|

006'£0T$ . .
LT0°69TS .
001°96T$
papuadx3
Suluieway m

100a s|aAIEIN suonipes)  ,adoH jo skemyieq «3SNOH
aug AN payL ageno) uapieg sug wopaaly

€00'TSVS

9/¥'T99$

698'€9T$ - -
S8£'0LTS 588857$ _

TIsTeULS

006'6£8$

3uipun4

s man
-$

000°002$
000°‘00v$
000°009$
000°008$
000°000°T$
000°002°T$
000°00V‘T$
000°009‘T$
000°008‘T$

goe‘zoT'Ts  000'000C$

A103§ ss@230ng

‘Pa3Uu JO JUBWOW B Ul S|ENpIAIpUL
959yl Hoddns 01 49y19801 dwed ||e SyuBWUOIIAUT SUIAIT J90O0S Y1 ‘SRIUBISWNIIID YNIIYIP 3y} audsaqg ‘SuiwwesSoid 10 s21A19S Ul asde| e Inoyum pue Appinb pasnoy wayl 198 pue sjuedidiued syl alepowwodde
01 Sal[19.} 419y} ul Spag dn pauado sOg) |BJaAS *9|qISSOd Se UOOS Se SJUDWUOIIAUD SulAl| J3GOS J3Yl0o N0 0jul pade|d pue paJiajsuel} g 01 papaau S|aAIBIA dlUulA e pasnoy siueddilied syl se asose sagus|eydo
MBU ‘SS0| 43y J0 1YS| uj "suoireziuesio paseq-AHUNWWOd 3Y3 JO ||e Ag 1|94 SEm 1BY] BUO SBM SSO| JBH "uollealjlunal Ajlwe) piemol saplils Suiyel ul wayl Sunsisse pue A1a14qos 03 Asuunof a1yl ur uswom Suid|ay noge
91euoissed A|qIpaJoul SeM SUIWISSES “UJP[IYD PUB UBWOAA 10} SUIAIT 19GOS S|SAIBIAl SIUUIIA JO JSUMO 3Y3 ‘DUILLSSES JO SSO| 3y} JaNe (SOFD) SuolieziueSiQ paseg-Alunwwo) ayl 10) U0 YNIIYIp e usaq sey Janenb ised ay|

juawAhojdw3 uopesnp3 juawieas)

€8 €L

€0¢C

32U0 uey) aJow PAUNOI 3q Aew SHUBI[D

«*SIUIID I1S
Aq uonedidnied ad1n19g

0S

00T

0ST

002

0S¢

SuiAn 13qos

%8
Sunojuay

%S
uonesnpy
Ina

%VT
juawaseuelp ase)

adA] 221n498 Aq sjuedidiyied

0s or 0¢ ot ot
sz o
ve
st
T a
o
L
ot
v
uoneqo.
o1 .
H18YS H
sjuaw|jo4u3

#9411 MON
syg
«9SNOH Wopaaiy
«2doH jo a8eno)
T sAemyied uapieg
100Q duQ
T 2iedisom
«uotHpes) paiyy
T 4dwoH Ajiwey umoig
S[AAJBI] DIUUIAI
T Sdils

20z ‘0€ Y21 - ¥20z ‘T Aenuer (,4914enD I1ST 09D) 49MEND PIE - HZ/ET Ad

1oday sia))dea] ereq 60T 9V

(s09D) SNOILVZINVDYO a3sva-ALINNININOD




S91°8 €899 SL99 sjuswugissy [e101 10l
0ce JAST4 8¢ SUOI1e|OIA
S60°S 080t 90S‘€ JoueawapsiA (101
0SL°C 9vE‘C 126°C Auoja4
€¢S L0V L9V JoueawsapsIN yel
STZ 6vT g€z Auojpq| B ‘UMY quowe
See 60¢€ 6L€ JoueawsapsIN

Ja4eys
8TT L6 €91 Auoja4
€ [44}3 5143 JoueawapsIN

ouepQ
08T €9¢ €61 Auoja4
[4%3 LLC SL¢ JoueawsapsIN

aneloN
eVl 9C1 SLT Auoja4
viv T0¢ 14 JoueawsapsIn 1Ny
v8 Lt €TT Auoja4| U4 8 152.4093p1y
0ce JAST4 8¢ uoIe|oIA
880°€ ¥8S°C EVL'T JOouB3WRPSIA plalysiaxeg
010C ¥99°'T 6€0C Auoja4

DO YW | MO PIE | ADPUZ | NADIST sjuswusissy Yyoueug

v20z ‘T€ Yd24eNl - 20z ‘T Aenuer

1911enp pIE - ¥Z/€T Ad

SYINIOVYL vivd 60T 9V
43dN343a do1gand

1D pag 130 pag 1D pag 1D pag 19D pag
vT/€T M €2/72 M 72/TT M 12/0Z A 02/6T Ad
, ! 000°S
£€6'
€179 - 0009
108
- 000
L1t - 0008
S9T'8
- 0006
- 00001
- 000'TT
sjuawusissy |elol - 000zt
410 pig J10 pig 130 pag 10 pig 110 pIg
vT/€T M €2/72 M 72/ M 12/0Z A 02/6T Ad
, ! 000'T
197t - 000
£08'z wi'e
0527 - 000
9zL's - 000
- 000
- 0009
sjuawusissy Auoje4 - 000
e o
- e

..__...Aﬁ‘.._,__.uum.m@

n9nd

way, fo aumo)




T4 0z Gl ol S 0
ab9)|0D swog m
S diN3
l H8) |BUOI}EO0A
uoljeqol
= S ' se160( 9691100
LB SN inodoiq 'S’ H=
IC m SO¥d 3o Jo ewojdig =
%
uonesyyisse|) 18puayo Aq pajjoius ;aquiny |9Ad7 uonesnp3 ,sav|jo4ul
snje)g |ellajoy
sdo1s aAlISod 10e1U0)
10} p3INpPayds S9IINIDS ON/1i0day
3 pajjoJu3 pasnyay 1ual|) Sunjiom MLY BuIssiN moys oN 10N pPId
4
'u| !
000 == 0 T¢I L
SOud Mﬂ € 000 9 S d & v 14
[ 6 LT
SIN 144
T¢ LT
[43
uoneqold = 1€ L€
9¢ 4%
ED Le it
9
s|eJ1a)9y
€1¢C
(s|e44959Y paulPaQ SnuUllAl [e1O01) S|ell9)9Y 19N
6 LE LT 17 €T 98T Q€ Lt
sjuswade
slewad SIEN sse|) ssaulpeay ud)je] s1sal INpon sse|) ¥ \d
VE[VED) ady ueipai\l sjuawijjosuj Suures)
gof op.a1 paidjdwo) @3io jo Jaqunp sdais anisod Apoisn)-1sod
Aq sjuawijjoauz 40 uswAhojdw3

'SN WOJJ DIURISISSE WOS YUM SqO[ |9A9)
J9y31Yy 4oy uleJl pue aJly 0} $1es1u0d Sululed| qor-ayl-uQ Olul J31Ud 4O ) 9139|dw0od oym 350yl aJiy pue wesdoud sty ul a1edpiped o1 ssaudul|jim e Suimoys
2Je s1aAojdwa 240w pue 3JOIA “S||INS SSBUIPEII-}IOM 419y} 1BJISUOWSP JO/pue dOjaASp 01 Paau Oym Sual|d 4oy JuswAojdwa pazipisgnsun o0} auols Suiddals
papaau-yonw e se 3uinIas S| XIMd HJoldd-uou |e20| B JOo 0D dY3 40} JURISISSY SAIIRJISIUIWPY Ue se Ajjusuewlad uo pally Sem ays Jeyl 9|0J Jay Ul pa||aaxd
(X3Md) @ouaiiadx3 SO pled Japun Juald v "(AM3IdI) SISO [BI14I03]T JO POOYJayl0.g |eUOIIRUIDIU| BY} YHM 3d1jualdde ue s| pue ‘wiey Je|os e e pakojdwa
Ajqusuund ‘wes8oad syy pajenpeus ‘diysaonuaiddy 1esd 1YNIAL €-DIA Syl papualie 1uald Jaylouy ‘100q uado yum paiojdwsa Ajpuauind osje si ays pue ‘983||0)
plausiayeg 1e sasse|d A30j0100S Sunjel uedd1aA Awly ue aaey am ‘uauenb syl jsn 01 s1uald 49331s Suid|sy 4oy sisuped |eduasau Jno 01 noA yueyl 8iq v ‘08
0} Jayenb e yum sjuald 00T 4O 4eaA ay3 Joy [eo8 uno Suissed ‘Janenp pJ€ 3yl anoysnouyi suald 60T 9V SOT Pa||oJud sey (Y¥13) 224nosay Sujuied] ssaAojdw]

32400538 AINNOD

ONINIVYL

SYIA0TIWI |\l

peayy 007 e pue sallols SSadng

uoday pJeoqyseq
sJ9yoed] eleq 60T 9V

¥20T ‘T€ Yd2JeN - 20z ‘T Aenuer
J9uenp pJE - ¥Z-€C Ad

e1UJ1041]€D JO 133U qOf S,edLRWY
924n0say Sujuies] siaAojdw3



suope[oIA
$913094eN

sayoueasg

s)abie] -uoN
/M S}oBRJUO0D

pajeso]
sjobie]

sjobie]
pauue|d

0

0

0

0

0

10
0
€0
o
50
90

L0

0 | suonejolp uoneqold

0 | suoijessasesu] ysejq
(sabaeyn
uadQ) s)sauly Joueawapsiin

(sabieyo
uadQ) sysauly Auojo4

salouaby Jo JaquinN
sheq jo JaquinN
SU01}E207 40 JaquinN

™®m O O o

suonesadQ 0 JequinN

80
60

0
000 S

0

0

spunodw| ss[o1IysA

suoneladQ buung pazias Aousiingd
paziag suodeapp

(slid) sonooseN

b

swb 000

SoIj00JEN

TINNOS¥3d VL0l

Jayio

juswiiedsq 991j0d 09SEAA
juswyedaq a91j0d Ideyoseys |
juswpedsq 891j0d Jel
juswyedaq 2104 sbuuds uoljers
juswyiedaq 991j0d Jeyeys
Jusweda( 8921104 }sal0abpry
juawjledsq 821j0d pueledoA
joulsiq |0oyds YBbIH uiey

20140 SHUBYS Auno uieyy
juswitedaq uoneqold Aluno) uieyy
Aauiony 1013s1Q AUN0D uiayy
juswiiedsq a91j0d ouelag
juswyedsq 8210 AN eluloyed
juswyedaq ad1j0d sbuudg Asjen Jeag
juswiiedaq 9110 plalsiayeg
Juswiledaq 992110 UIAY

O O O OO OO0 OO0 O oo OoOOo o ojo

o

-1334enb siy3 Suunp pajonpuod asam suonesadQ 1S ON




¥Z-€20C €2-720C TT-120C 12-020C 0Z-6107 61-8107
E g= .- - I-_ I-Ill-o
0z
ot
09
08
00T
0zt
ovT

091

08T
JoAlBAN UOIN| ch_ucmo_wo | | geyay-20A |eJIpaA I jusawelelsulay jijousg M

guisnoy uawuolioddy m S)jouag maN $10e1U0) URIDIA M

Juawieda 921AJaS SUBIIIA AJUNOD) UIDY

*AJuno) uJay 1noy3Snoay3 SUoIIN}ISUI JBYIO0 UIYIIM SUOIFIBUUOD Je[IWIS
dojanap 01 SI ASAD) 4O s|eod aunin4 ‘uosiid a31e1s ayy Aq papinoad siajgel uo wooz y3noayl 3uirediunwwod
JO SuBSW By} dABY SI}BWUl puB }BIS "IAIIS Ul dwil J1I9y} Sulnp pasayns ewnedl |edidojoydAsd
0} pale[aJ swied 3uljly Aq suesa1aA paledadJedul asay) 1sisse 0l Aylunuoddo ue sapinoad siyy ‘sisidojoydAsd
uosldd 91e3S AS||BA UJDY BIA SUBISIDA PI1RJIDIIBIUI 0} UOIIEDIUNWIWOD O dUl| 3I3JIP B Paysl|qelsa sey dSAD

"SIDPUILO UBIDIDA JO 91BJ WSIAIPIIBI 9Y3} 92NPaJ pue Ajunwwod ay3 0jul uollea3ajulal
|[NJSSIIINS 0} SJdl4Jeq dleulwl|d 0} HOd ue ul sdnosd AJunwwod J3Ylo 0} S|elua4ad Se [|9M se
‘S11J2Ua(q SJIe}Y SURIDIBA JO JUBWMEedDQ elUIOyIE) ‘S11JauUaq (VA) SJIBelY SURIIBA JO Juswmedaq
01 Ss@2de sapinoad aAnlenul 8y "walsAs ad11snl jeutwid syl ul a8els Aue 1e (saljiwey J19y) pue)
SueJa19A 01 Judwadeuew ased pue Adedoape 1yauaq apirosd 01 paleudisap (YSA) SAlleluasasday
9JIAIDS SueJala\ paledipap e sey (QSADM) 1uswiiedag 921AI8S Suesalap Auno) wid) |yl

S|eJl9)3Yy JapInold IINIDS
0ue)sIssy JuswAedianQ e
JudWaleISuUIaYy Hjauag
sjuapuadaq

104 JaAIE A UOIUN] 19A|ED
20URISISSY SUISNOH e
uollejl|iqeyay [euoilieso/
|BJIP3N

uolIsuad e

1uswuolloddy e

Al[1gesIQ pa193uu0)-92IAISS e

IWSIAIPIDY
92npay pue uoile.SduIdy
1oddng 0} papInO.d SIINIDS

(rzoz ‘1€ YaJen - vzoe ‘T Aenuer) € 4314vVND
VZ-€C Ad LHOd3Y SHPIDVYL vVivad 60T 9V

3DIAGIS SNVIILIA
ININQ @9




CCP ltem #6 / EC Item #4

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

FROM: Rebecca L. Vaughan, Division Director
Kern County Probation Department

SUBJECT: Request to Terminate Agreement No. 656-2022 and Personal/Professional Services
Agreement with Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and Children and Proposed
Allocation of Remaining Funds

BACKGROUND

On March 18, 2024, the Kern County Probation Department was notified of the passing of Janice
“Jassmine” Marvel, owner of Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and Children. The Agency Profile
listed under Exhibit B, Contractor RFP Proposal, listed Ms. Marvel as the person authorized to conduct all
business on behalf of Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and Children. Since Agreement No. 656-
2022 and the Personal/Professional Services Agreement (PPSA) were between Ms. Marvel and the
County, signing authority cannot be transferred to another individual by contract amendment. Therefore, it
was recommended to terminate the contract with Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and Children as
the business was listed as a sole proprietorship. Female AB 109 participants assigned to Minnie Marvels
Sober Living for Women and Children were transferred to other Community-Based Organizations (CBO)
on March 21, 2024 to ensure there is no lapse in service and treatment.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATION

It is the recommendation of the Kern County Probation Department to retroactively terminate Agreement
No. 656-2022 and PPSA with Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and Children effective April 26, 2024
and re-designate balance of funds after final invoice is paid to the CBO program to cover cost of future
agreements.



KERN COUNTY ProBaATION DERPARTNVMIENT

Wiliam Dickinson
Chief Probation Officer

March 22, 2024

Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women & Children
713 Lilac St

Bakersfield, CA 93308

Re: Notice of Termination of Agreement No. 656-2022 & PPSA Agreement

To Whom It May Concern:

On behalf of the Community Corrections Partnership (CCP), this letter is to notify you of the CCP'’s intent
to terminate the following agreements between Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and Children

(Minnie Marvels) and the County of Kern:

e Agreement No. 656-2022 dated December 6, 2022
e Personal/Professional Services Agreement (PPSA) dated October 26, 2023

The request to terminate the Agreements will be presented to the Board of Supervisors (Board) on
June 18, 2024 for approval. We will be requesting that the Board retroactively terminate the Agreements
effective April 27, 2024; however, please note that termination is not final until approved by the Board.

On March 18, 2024, Kern County Probation received notice from the Kern County Sheriff's Office that
Janice “Jassmine” Marvel, Director/Owner, passed away. The Agency Profile listed under Exhibit B,
Contractor RFP Proposal, Scope of Work, Section 1, page 25, listed Ms. Marvel as the person authorized
to conduct all business on behalf of Minnie Marvels. As the agreement was between Ms. Marvel and the
County, signing authority cannot be transferred to another individual by contract amendment and the
agreement must be terminated.

Pursuant to Section 35 of the agreement, pages 16-17, Minnie Marvels has fifteen (15) days to submit all
files, memoranda, documents, correspondence, and other items generated in the course of performing
services under the Agreement. Minnie Marvels will be compensated for all satisfactory services rendered
prior to the effective date of termination (April 27, 2024), in an amount not to exceed the maximum dollar
amount indicated in the Agreement’s Schedule.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please contact Rebecca Vaughan, Division Director-Fiscal,
Research & Planning, at rebeccavaughan@kernprobation.org.

Sincerely,

P g ——a

William P. Dickinson
Chief Probation Officer
Chairperson, Community Corrections Partnership

2005 Ridge Road ¢ Bakersfield, CA S3305 * Phone (661)868-4100 « Fax (88118684199 » TTY Relay 1-800-735-2923



CCP Item #7 / EC Item #5

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

FROM: Rebecca L. Vaughan, Division Director
Kern County Probation Department

SUBJECT: Request to Enter into Multiple Personal/Professional Services Agreements (PPSA) to
Provide Sober Living Environment Housing to Female AB 109 Participants

BACKGROUND

Due to the termination of Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and Children’s contract, there is a need
to replace the 10 beds to provide sober living environment housing for female AB 109 participants. Kern
County Probation Department is requesting approval for three PPSAs with our current providers to be able
to continue to provide 10 female beds. The following Community-Based Organizations are able to
accommodate 10 female beds:

1) Freedom House - effective as of March 21, 2024 as female clients from Minnie Marvels were
transferred to this home urgently after the passing of the owner of Minnie Marvels.

2) Bakersfield Recovery Services — effective date upon approval by CCP

3) Third Tradition — effective date upon approval by CCP

Due to extenuating circumstances and instruction from County Counsel, the retroactive agreement with
Freedom House was presented to the Board of Supervisors for approval and execution by the Chairman
on June 4, 2024. The retroactive nature of the agreement and total dollar amount required Board of
Supervisors’ approval prior to the CCP committee approval.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff is requesting authorization to enter into multiple PPSAs with Freedom House, Bakersfield Recovery
Services, and Third Tradition with a termination date of 12/31/2025.



CCP ltem #8

DONNY YOUNGBLOOD SHERIFF’S OFFICE Telephone (661) 391-7500

Sheriff-Coroner

Public Administrator COUNTY OF KERN

1350 Norris Road
Bakersfield, California 93308-2231

June 12, 2024

Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)
Executive Committee

C/o Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd., P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

AB 109 Summary Report on Community-Based Organizations in 2023

In 2023, AB 109 funds continued to provide housing and supportive services by referring
participants to Community-Based Organizations (CBOs) contracted by the County of Kern
and with the approval of the Community Corrections Partnership (CCP). Programs and
services were provided to individuals in Kern County who had been released from state
prison, county jail, and were under the supervision of the Probation Department, Sheriff’s
Office or had received services with the Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services
Department. The goal of the referrals is the reduction of criminal recidivism and to assist
the AB 109 population in successful re-entry to the community.

The CCP contracted with eleven CBOs during the 2023 calendar year, including six
Personal/Professional Service Agreements. Each CBO submitted an annual report
detailing the highlights of their program for the past service year. The following is a
summary of the information provided. In 2023, the CCP contracted with the following
CBOs:

Sober Living Environments (SLE)

» Bakersfield Recovery Services, Inc. (Capistrano Community for Women and
Jason’s Retreat)

Cottage of Hope and Gratitude Sober Living

Freedom House Recovery Homes (Freedom House and Terra Lynn)

Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and Children

New Life Recovery & Training Center

The Brown Family Home

Third Tradition Sober Living

VVVVVYY

PLEASE ADDRESS ALL COMMUNICATIONS TO THE SHERIFF



June 12, 2024
Page 2

Supportive Services

» Garden Pathways, Inc. — Mentoring Services

» One Door Recovery — Case Management

» Special Treatment Education & Prevention Services, Inc. (STEPS)- DUI Services
» WestCare California, Inc. — Case Management

The contracts with the above-listed CBOs began January 1, 2023, and are set to conclude
on December 31, 2025.

In 2023, a total of $2,442,324.64 was paid in claim reimbursements to CBOs for the
services provided. Additionally, there were 1,077 participants enrolled in the CBO
programs. Participants were referred by Kern County Probation Department and Kern
County Sheriff’'s Office personnel.

Housing Services (Sober Living Environments)

The CBOs provided 786 participants with housing in Sober Living Environments for a total
of 48,822 bed-days. This is an increase of 8,943 bed-days over the number used in 2022.
The SLEs reported 191 program completions and 149 participants were still successfully
participating at the end of the year. Participants were provided 180 days of housing at the
contracted SLEs which was an increase of 60 days over the previous round of contracts.
Kern County Probation Department or the Kern County Sheriff's Office approved
extensions on a case-by-case basis by when bed space was available.

Sober Living Environment Participants

300
253
250 1 M Bakersfield Recovery
200 - 188 O Brown Family Home
M Cottage of Hope
1 12 I Freedom House
100 - 95 B Minnie Marvels
47 54 O New Life
= 3 . l B Third Tradition
0

In addition to housing, a variety of supportive services were made available to SLE
participants. These services provided skills needed for successful re-entry into the
community and to reduce the likelihood of recidivism. Services provided in 2023 included:



June 12, 2024
Page 3

Anger Management

Behavioral Health Management

Case Management

Clothing Assistance/Work Attire Referrals
Employment Services/Job Search Assistance/Obtaining Right to Work Documents
Family Reunification

Life Skills

Medi-Cal Enrollment

Parenting and Neglect Classes
Substance Abuse Classes
Transportation/Bus Passes

Vocational Training/WESTEC Certification

VVVVVVVVVVYVYY

Drug Testing was conducted at all the SLEs. There were 5,067 drug tests administered,
of which 900, or 18%, reported as testing positive. There were also 5,077 breathalyzer
tests performed and 82, or 2%, reported as testing positive.

SLE Drug Testing Breathalyzer Testing

2%

18%

Positive Positive

H Negative H Negative

82% 98%

As part of the 2023 review process, the CBOs were asked what the greatest contribution
their program made to participants who successfully completed the program. The
responses received from the CBOs varied. Several CBOs agreed that by giving their
participants much needed support, they were able to continue moving forward in their
sobriety. By helping them to understand the recovery process and the importance of
working together, they were able overcome obstacles or barriers they previously could
not. Also mentioned was job development, job search assistance programs and
networking which allowed the programs to build relationships in the community and
provide more resources to their participants.

The SLEs provided a safe home-like atmosphere where their residents received the
support and encouragement needed to successfully complete the program. Relapse was
not an automatic failure with many receiving second and third chances instead of a
program termination. The increase to 180 days of funding in the SLEs gave many



June 12, 2024
Page 4

participants the extra time needed to find employment, save money, and secure safe
housing.

Supportive (Non-Residential) Services

Supportive services were provided to a total of 291 participants in 2023. There was a total
of 103 participants who successfully completed their program. Supportive services also
had 35% of their participants who were still active at the end of the year.

Supportive Services Participants
100
80 B Garden Pathways
O One Door Recovery
60 -
Il STEPS - First Offender
40
@ STEPS - Multiple Offender
20 -
B WestCare
0

In 2023, One Door Recovery completed their first year as a new CBO provider. When
assessing unsuccessful outcomes with their participants and looking at how to address
the issue, One Door stated they can ensure their services emphasize the client’s role in
their vision for their future and established an accountability plan that expanded beyond
case management.

In past years, Garden Pathways has looked at underlying factors such as mental health,
substance abuse, housing, and food insecurities when offering a trauma informed
approach to their case mentoring services. This approach has proven to build trust and
confidentiality between participants and their mentors. All non-residential CBOs have
reported that monitoring their participants’ progress on a weekly basis has aided in
eliminating barriers which can prevent one from reaching their goals. Unmet goals are
reviewed to identify the barrier which is then followed-up by direct linkage to resources
from other CBO providers and community partners.

Having the ability to identify specific needs for participants is one strength that all CBOs
possess. WestCare and STEPS both agreed that having supportive staff along with
positive partnerships encourages this population to not only comply with their supervision
terms, but also make changes to better themselves as individuals. The hard work and
commitment of our support service providers was apparent as there was an 88% overall



June 12, 2024
Page 5

increase in enrolled participants compared to the previous year. Additionally, 71% of
those participants had either successfully completed or were still active at the end of 2023.

The Sheriff’'s Office and its partner agencies would like to thank all the CBOs for their
service to the communities in Kern County. Their dedication is greatly appreciated and

because of their support for this population, we are allowed to continue a mission and
further serve more individuals each year.

Sincerely,

DONNY YOUNGBLOOD, Sheriff-Coroner
L. JH 562

By: Jaime Hernandez, Detentions Lieutenant
Compliance Section

JH/JDA/LZ



CCP Item#9/ EC ltem #6

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/
Executive Committee
C/o Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM: Cindy Cisneros, Chief Deputy
Kern County Sheriff's Office

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections
Partnership (CCP) at the meeting of June 12, 2024:

Title: REQUEST FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/25
CARRYFORWARD RESERVES

Background: Request for Fiscal Year 2024/25 carryforward reserves in the
amount of $1,919,391 for purchase of body worn cameras and docking
stations, intercoms in jail cells, costs associated with implementation of
our investigations and K9 unit in detentions, and cameras for our
transportation buses.

Fiscal Impact: $1,919,391
Recommendation/ Request Approval of FY 2024/25 Carryforward Reserves

Action to be Taken: MAKE PRESENTATION; DISCUSS; MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Cingy Cisneros, Chief Deputy
Kern County Sheriff’s Office



KERN COUNTY PROBATION DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Community Corrections Partnership DATE: June 12, 2024
FROM: William P. Dickinson

Chief Probation Officer
SUBJECT: Probation Department’'s Request for AB 109 Carryforward Reserves

The Probation Department is requesting AB 109 Carryforward Reserves in the amount of $1,000,000. The
Department will use these funds for building infrastructure and improvements for the AB 109 and Adult
Supervision Divisions’ new shared location. The building will need to be outfitted with the required
programming, technology and security equipment upon completion.

To better meet the growing demands of serving the AB 109 population, the Department plans on leasing a
new building to house all adult probation supervision services in one location, a one-stop shop for all
participants. It is critical officers conducting case management to have an adequate environment to meet
with the offenders under their supervision and provide the necessary services to redirect their behavior in a
pro-social manner. The new location will accommodate adult supervision units and the Adult Programs
Center improving service delivery and ensuring “Accountability and Opportunity” to the AB 109 and adult
probation population.



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/
Executive Committee
Clo Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM: Alison Burrowes, Director
Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services (KernBHRS)

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections
Partnership (CCP) at the meeting of June 12, 2024:

Title:

Background:

Fiscal Impact:

Recommendation/

Action to be Taken:

=

//

Request for FY 2024/2025 AB109 funds from the Carryforward Reserves

Since June of 2020, KernBHRS has operated the Recovery Station in Bakersfield,
which provides a safe environment where intoxicated individuals encountered by law
enforcement can allow their intoxication to pass instead of being arrested and
booked into jail. The Recovery Station is a voluntary program staffed by peers and
clinicians who provide support to adults experiencing acute intoxication. They assist
individuals in connecting them to behavioral health, substance use disorder
services, housing resources, and community resources to divert them from returning
to incarceration by redirecting them to services. The Recovery Station provides
services to AB109 eligible individuals, serving as a preventative measure for those
who are under supervision of the Kern County Sheriff's Office or the Kern County
Probation department. The Recovery Station can be an intercept for those at risk of
re-offending and returning to incarceration. To maintain this essential service,
KernBHRS is requesting $1,000,000 to sustain program operations beyond June
2024, when current funding will no longer be available.

$1,000,000

Approve requested AB109 funds from the Carryforward Reserves to utilize for
sustaining operations of the Recovery Station.

Alison Burrowes, LCSW

Director

Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/
Executive Committee
C/o Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM: Jose Lopez, County Veterans Service Officer
Kern County Veterans Service Department

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) at the
meeting of June 12, 2024:

[Title:] Additional funding request from Reserves

[Background:] The Kern County Veterans Service Department (KCVSD) requests additional funds in the
amount of $50,500 to supplement partial salaries of new employees who will be CCP qualified
as well as federally accredited VA Claims representatives. Additionally, advancements in
technology have made us more accessible to clients whether they are incarcerated in an
institution or remotely at their residences throughout Kern County. An additional $10,000 is
requested to increase the amount of mobile tablet devices we have available as well as
necessary mobile data devices to provide secure internet links when working remotely.

[Fiscal Impact, if any:]  $60,500 (or a percentage equal to this amount).
[Recommendation/
Action to be Taken:] Approve requested additional funds in the amount of $60,500 from Reserves to fund

additional CCP qualified staff and to purchase additional devices necessary to meet the
community needs.

"/’ /
7 Jose Lopez.W»




CCP ltem #10 / EC ltem #7

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/
Executive Committee
Cl/o Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM: Cindy Cisneros, Chief Deputy
Kern County Sheriff's Office

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections
Partnership (CCP) at the meeting of June 12, 2024:

Title: REQUEST FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/25 BASE ALLOCATION

Background: Request for Fiscal Year 2024/25 base funding using the established
percentage allocation in the amount of $25,151,512 to maintain current
staffing and service levels.

Fiscal Impact: $25,151,512
Recommendation/ Request Approval of FY 2024/25 Base Allocation

Action to be Taken: MAKE PRESENTATION; DISCUSS; MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

M—_‘

Cindy Cisnergs,/Chief Deputy
Kern County Sheriff's Office




KERN COUNTY PROBATION DEPARTMENT

TO: Community Corrections Partnership DATE: 6/12/2024

FROM: William P. Dickinson
Chief Probation Officer

SUBJECT: Proposed Probation Plan for FY 2024/25

Probation proposes keeping its existing 35.56% of the base allocation. This equates to a total of $22,775,344. This
funding allocation will continue AB 109 operations and activities for the Probation Department.

There are no significant changes to the proposed Probation plan for FY 2024/25 except one (1) Departmental
Analyst has been changed to one (1) Administrative Coordinator position.

The chart below reflects the recommended FY 2024/25 AB 109 budget for the Probation Department:

Position/ltem # Cost per Unit Cost for 1 Year
Probation Division Director 2 292,621 585,242
Probation Supervisor 5 217,616 1,088,080
Deputy Probation Officer lll 15 200,343 3,005,145
Deputy Probation Officer 62 172,064 10,667,968
Probation Program Specialist 10 115,803 1,158,030
Probation Technician 10 102,720 1,027,200
Sr. Office Services Specialist 1 114,486 114,486
Office Services Specialist 2 100,772 201,544
Office Services Technician 4 92,018 368,072
Departmental Analyst 2 122,087 244174
Administrative Coordinator 1 127,872 127,872
Database Analyst 1 154,169 154,169
Programmer 1 179,063 179,063
Technical Support Specialist 1 121,468 121,468
117

Total Salaries & Benefits 19,042,513
Day Reporting Center (DRC) 1,164,996
Operating Expenses 2,567,835
Total Services & Supplies

Total 22,775,344




AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/
Executive Committee
C/o Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM: Alison Burrowes, MA., LCSW, Director
Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections
Partnership (CCP) at the meeting of June 12, 2024:

Title: Kern BHRS Budget Justification/Spending Plan for FY 2024/2025

Background: Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services proposes to keep its existing
portion of the base allocation of $8,684,862.00. Kern BHRS will absorb all expenditures
exceeding this allocation, as indicated in the attached document.

This allocation request includes previous staffing and program costs. (Please refer to the
attached document)

Fiscal Impact:

Total Projected Expenditures for FY 2024/2025 $8,748,960.96
Proposed CCP Base Allocation to Kern BHRS for FY 2024/2025 $8,684,862.00
Total Projected Expenditures exceeding Allocation for ($64,098.96)
FY 2024/2025

Respectfully Submitted,

Alison Burrowes, MA., LCSW, Director
Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services



Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services
AB109 Budget Justification/Spending Plan: FY 2024/2025

Salaries and Benefits

Service Position FTE Annual Cost

BH Recovery Specialist 13 1,443,012.16

_ _ BH Therapist 9 1,249,785.74

Correctional Behavioral Health-  ["g102 it Unit Supervisor 1 205,209.88
Jail Personnel - - —

Office Services Technician 3 263,738.66

Licensed Vocational Nurse 11 1,447,656.84

Physicians 600,000.00
Contracted Services
Adult SOC Contractors 678,108.00
KLD SOC Contracts 2,000,000.00
Pharmacy Contractors 220,527.00
System of Care Oversight 640,922.68
Total Projected Expenditures for FY 2024/2025 $8,748,960.96
CCP Base Allocations to Kern BHRS for FY 2024/2025 | $8,684,862.00
Total Projected Expenditures Exceeding Allocation for FY 2024/2025 (64,098.96)

(*Kern BHRS to absorb this projected expenditure cost)




AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/
Executive Committee
C/o Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM: Joseph Kinzel, Assistant District Attorney
Kern County District Attorney’s Office

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections
Partnership (CCP) at the meeting of June 12, 2024:

Title: REQUEST FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BASE FUNDING
ALLOCATION
Background: Request for fiscal year 2023/24 base funding using the historical

percentage allocation in the amount of $2,741,240.00 to maintain current
staffing and service levels.

Fiscal Impact: $2,741,240.00

Recommendation/ Approve and direct to Executive Committee for further action.
Further Action:

Joseph Kinzel, Assistant District Attorney



TO:

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/
Executive Committee

C/o Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309

Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM:
Peter Kang

Kern County Public Defender
1315 Truxtun Ave,4th Floor
Bakersfield, CA 93301

Submitted is the following agenda item to be considered by the Community Corrections
Partnership (CCP) at the meeting of June 12, 2024

Title:

Background:

Fiscal Impact:

FY 2024-2025 Base Funding Allocation Request

The overwhelming majority of criminal defendants are indigent, and the Public
Defender represents a significant portion of these persons. Our mandate is
Constitutional and statutory. Under the Sixth Amendment to the United States
Constitution, persons accused of committing crimes, who cannot afford to hire
private counsel, are entitled to appointed counsel. Pursuant to California
Government Code § 27706, the Public Defender is charged with representation of
persons qualifying for appointed counsel. It is not possible to precisely align or
attribute a particular defendant or crime to Realignment. Consequently, the
department utilizes the AB 109 allocation to meet — as effectively as we can — the
department’s significant Realignment driven caseload.

Consistent with prior years, the department is requesting appropriations
approximating one-half, or 50%, of those made to the District Attorney, exclusive
of the District Attorney’s Crime Lab funding. (Notably, the Public Defender is
obliged to self-fund necessary DNA and other lab testing and experts).

$1,370,620 (or one-half of the base funding allocation made to the District
Attorney’s office — whichever is greater).



Recommendation: Request approval of FY 2024-2025 Base Funding Allocation to the Kern
County Public Defender’s Office in the amount of $1,370,620, or subject to any
upward adjustment to the Kern County District Attorney’s Officer base funding
allocation (50% of the amount allocated to the Kern County District Attorney’s
Office).

Action to be Taken: Approve, authorize Chair to implement.

Y
/f?ﬁx Z,{__ﬁ ‘(YF-

Peter Kang
Public Defender



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/
Executive Committee
C/o Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM: Aaron Ellis, Chief Workforce Development Officer
Employers’ Training Resource

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections
Partnership (CCP) at the meeting of June 12,2024

Title: EMPLOYERS' TRAINING RESOURCE PY 2024-25
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

Background: Workforce Development Series

Fiscal Impact: $883,858

Recommendation/

Action to be Taken: Request approval of Public Safety Realignment Act of 2011 (AB109)
Implementation Plan established by the Community Corrections
Partnership and Executive Committee pursuant to Penal Code section
1230.1 - APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIR TO IMPLEMENT.

(e

Aaron Ellis, Chief Workforce Development Officer




AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership
(CCP)/Executive Committee
CIO Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM: Aaron Tucker, Acting Chief of Police
Ridgecrest Police Department

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections Partnership
(CCP) at the meeting of June 12, 2024:

Title:

Background:

Fiscal Impact:

Recommendation/

Action to be Taken:

STREET INTERDICTION TEAM (SIT) REQUEST FY 2024/25 AB 109 BASE
FUNDING ALLOCATION

SIT is requesting FY 2024/25 AB 109 Base Funding in the amount of $435,524.
To date in FY 2023/24, SIT has conducted the following:

e Total Operations: 7

e Number of Days: 20

s Total Hours: 204

e Total Arrests: 68

e Seized Items: 16 handguns/shotguns seized,
including ammunition, stolen
vehicles, and various drugs

$435,524

MAKE PRESENTATION; DISCUSS; MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE BASE FUNDING ALLOCATION
REQUEST

ono P s-9.202¢

Aaron Tucker, Acting Chief of Police
Ridgecrest Police Department



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/
Executive Committee
C/o Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM: Jose Lopez, County Veterans Service Officer
Kern County Veterans Service Department

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) at the
meeting of June 12, 2024:

[Title:] Veterans Service Department Realignment Act of 2011 Implementation Plan

[Background:] The Kern County Veterans Service Department (KCVSD) has historically had a dedicated
Veterans Service Representative (VSR) designated to provide benefit advocacy and case
management to veterans (and their families) at any stage in the criminal justice system. The
initiative provides access to Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) benefits, California
Department of Veterans Affairs benefits, as well as referrals to other service providers in an
effort to eliminate barriers to successful reintegration into the community and reduce the
recidivism rate of veteran offenders. Since this employee was hired, she has learned to
navigate and successfully negotiate any challenge(s) that have arisen while assisting this
veteran population and is now responsible for departmental training of all new and current
employees. In an effort to further reduce barriers to benefits, the department has implemented
CCP specific training as part of its onboard training for all new employees.

Having VSR’s trained and experienced specifically in this area of advocacy has not only
allowed for a smooth transition to benefits for the veteran once released from custody, but
also increased accessibility to benefits for their dependents while the veteran is incarcerated.
Moreover, having multiple points of contact for justice-involved veterans has allowed for a
more robust relationship between our VSR's and the other service providers in the veteran
community.

The VSR's work with VA medical staff to enroll veterans in VA healthcare and arranges
transportation to the VA domiciliary on the VA Medical Center's West Los Angeles campus,
as well as connect veterans with the Vernon Valenzuela Veterans Justice Program operated
out of the VA Bakersfield Outpatient Clinic in collaboration with the public defender’s office.
Our VSR’s work closely with California Veterans Assistance Foundation to secure housing for
those veterans who are experiencing homelessness or are at risk of becoming homeless.
Additionally, our VSR works with spouses of veterans to request apportionments of the
veteran’s monthly benefits to ensure those funds are distributed to the veteran’s family while
the veteran is incarcerated.

Since the implementation of the program, we have assisted 345 local veterans and family
members with 157 veterans assisted in fiscal year 23-24. Our SVSR assisted 30 veterans via
virtual conferences while assisting with their VA compensation or pension benefits.
Furthermore, our SVSR has received numerous correspondence and has replied with
valuable information for veterans regarding potential benefits as they prepare for release.

The KCVSD is excited by our continued success and looks forward to continuing to assist
veterans and their families as they navigate the criminal justice system and move forward on
life's journey. Based on our continued success and increased advocacy in the form of
additional trained CCP staff, the total request from the Community Corrections Partnership for
fiscal year 2024-2025 is $172,929, which will be used to provide funding for the multiple CCP
qualified VSR’s, 1 Supervising Veterans Service representative, 2 tablets and updated mobile
data devices, as well as video-conferencing licensing to work with justice-involved veterans
and their families.



[Fiscal Impact, if any:]

[Recommendation/
Action to be Taken:]

Position/ltem Total
Supervising Veterans Service Representative (FTE: 1.0) $112,599
County Veterans Services Officer (FTE: 0.25) 37,336
Business Manager (FTE 0.1) 156,201
Equipment & Supplies 7,793
Total $172,929

$172,929 (or a percentage equal to this amount).

Request approval of Kern County Veterans Service Department Realignment Act of 2011
(AB 109) Implementation Plan established by the Community Correction Partnership and
Executive Committee pursuant to Penal Code section 1230.0 — APPROVE; AUTHORIZE

CHAIR TO IMPLEMENT

I

ose Lopez,

/



CCP ltem #10/ EC ltem #7

County of Kern

Public Safety Realignment Act
FY 2024/25 Plan

(Approved by CCP TBD)
(Approved by Kern County Board of Supervisors TBD)

Community Corrections Partnership
Executive Committee

William P. Dickinson, Chief Probation Officer (Chairperson)
Tara Leal, Chief Executive Officer of the Superior Court
Greg Terry, Chief-Bakersfield Police Department
Peter Kang, Public Defender
Alison Burrowes, Director-Behavioral Health & Recovery Services
Donny Youngblood, Sheriff-Coroner
Cynthia Zimmer, District Attorney




Table of Contents

AB 109 Background

Existing Implementation

Strategic Plan for Factors Affecting Growth Funds

Evidence-Based Programming

Data Collection, Research, and Analysis

FY 2024/25 Plan

Probation Department

Sheriff’'s Office

Kern Behavioral Health & Recovery Services Department
Employers’ Training Resource

District Attorney’s Office

Public Defender’s Office

Street Interdiction Team

Community-Based Organizations Program

Veterans Service Department

Contingency Funds

Allocation of Realignment Funds

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




AB 109 Background

Assembly Bill 109 (AB 109), the Public Safety Realignment Act of 2011, was signed into law by
Governor Jerry Brown on April 4, 2011. It became effective on October 1, 2011. This Act, along with
numerous trailer bills, made major changes to the criminal justice system in California. With these
changes has come a large shift of responsibilities passed from the State to the Counties.

Some of the most significant changes in the law that Realignment brought include the following:

Certain felonies, often referred to as Non, Non, Nons (non-serious, non-violent, and non-
sex offenses), are no longer punishable by a state prison term. Instead, these felony
charges are only eligible for county jail sentences.

Certain offenders released from State prison are no longer released on State parole but
instead are released on “Post Release Community Supervision” (PRCS). These
offenders are supervised by the Probation Department.

Most offenders on State parole and all offenders on PRCS will now serve time in county
jail for violations instead of State prison.

The Court and not the State Parole Board began hearing violations of PRCS offenders.
On July 1, 2013, the Court also began hearing violations of offenders on State Parole.

The law states that counties should focus on using alternative sanctions and evidence-
based practices to reduce recidivism (PC 17.5) more effectively.

AB 109 also created the Executive Committee of the previously established Community Corrections
Partnership (CCP). This committee is responsible for creating and presenting a plan to the County
Board of Supervisors regarding allocation of funds and implementation of policies and procedures
related to Realignment. The plan is deemed accepted unless the Board of Supervisors rejects the plan
with a four-fifths vote against. In such a circumstance, the plan is returned to the CCP for further
consideration.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Existing Implementation

Each fiscal year since October 1, 2011, the Kern County Board of Supervisors has unanimously
approved the Kern County Public Safety Realignment Act Plan as recommended by the Executive
Committee of the Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) as mandated by Penal Code Section
1230.1. These plans have directed funding to numerous county agencies and community organizations
to account for the additional public safety burden placed on the County. The plans included a mix of
intense supervision, evidence-based assessments and treatment, mental health services, substance
use treatment, a day reporting center, increased jail capacity, jail incarceration alternatives, employment
services, community-based organizations, District Attorney and Public Defender staff, multiagency law
enforcement operations, and veteran services.

The CCP understood from the beginning that the Realignment process would evolve and change as it
moved forward. The CCP acknowledged the need to be flexible in its approach to address aspects of
Realignment as the practical and logistical realities presented themselves. The keys to making
Realignment successful include the collection of data, communication between community partners,
and a willingness to find solutions which best benefit our community.

There have been both successes and struggles since the beginning of Realignment. Challenges
include the sheer number of realigned offenders that continue to be significantly higher than projected
(Tables 1 and 2). These higher than anticipated numbers put a strain on all CCP partners in the form
of higher supervision caseloads and increased need for a variety of community services. The limited
amount of State dedicated funds for Kern County has also been a challenge. This puts Kern County at
a disadvantage compared to other counties who have considerably more resources to devote to
services. The CCP developed a strategic plan to address the performance elements which will impact
the amount Kern receives in Growth funding (the strategic plan is discussed in greater detail below).
While Kern County has taken many positive and innovative steps to address Realignment, additional
steps are needed; however, limited funding may restrict implementation.

There have been many positive actions taken by the CCP in response to Realignment. All parties
involved in implementation have been fully engaged and worked together to make this difficult transition
as successful as possible. By incorporating AB 109 legislative intent and ideas, Kern County is currently
doing the following:

Implementing evidence-based programs that produce longer-lasting, positive results

Utilizing Sheriff's Virtual Jail to allow and monitor conditional releases, which can save

millions of dollars compared to incarceration

Improving inter-departmental cooperation in addressing specific issues and goals to

improve communication, form partnerships, and expand services

Creating employment services and paid work experience programs

Providing a Pre-Trial Release Program

Reorganizing department workloads and units for maximization of efficiency related to

implementation of AB 109 programs

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Operating the Day Reporting Center, which produces pivotal changes in anti-social
behaviors of offenders

Expanding in-custody educational, vocational, and evidence-based programs to provide
the necessary tools to reduce recidivism

Utilizing the community-based organizations (CBO) program, which provides a multitude
of services to offenders

Applying information gained from the criminal justice system benefit-cost analysis
developed through collaboration with the national Pew-MacArthur Results First Initiative
Operating the Probation Department’s Adult Programs Center, which has an emphasis
on evidence-based programming focused on changing anti-social behavior

Providing screenings and assessments while individuals are incarcerated to assist with
linkage to outpatient services

Addressing the mental health and substance use of individuals served and reduce
recidivism days of hospitalization, incarceration, and homelessness

Providing intensive outpatient treatment to AB 109 individuals who do not respond to
traditional outpatient treatment

The CCP is dedicated to ensuring Realignment will be as successful as possible. Reviewing and
revising the plan each year, provides the impetus for a strategic continuous improvement process.

Table 1 — PRCS and Mandatory Supervision Offenders (Sentenced under 1170-h)

PRCS PRCS Population* Offenders
Packets (Snapshot as of | Sentenced to MS
Received May 1,2024) (As of May
1,2024)

MS Population*
(Snapshot as of
May 1,2024)

Time Period

Oct 2011-May 1,2024 12,365 2,290 4,593 726

*Includes those on warrant status

Table 2 — AB 109 Population Impacts to Kern County Sheriff's Office (KCSO)

Probation
Parol i
. arole Probation Flash AB 109 Total AB 109
i , Violators PRCS . NNN :
Time Period Received Violators Violators Population Population

P Impact to KCSO

PC 3455(A) 3 4::;( C) Received

Oct 2011-April 11, 2024 25,129 19,826 2,500 10,257 64,216

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Strategic Plan for Factors Affecting
Growth Funds

In October 2014, the CCP approved the establishment of an Ad Hoc Strategic Planning committee to
develop a strategic plan specifically to address the factors affecting AB 109 Growth funds which became
performance-based beginning with the Growth funds received in the Fall of 2016. In December 2014,
the CCP contracted with a consultant to assist in the development of the plan. From January to May
2015, over 250 various community, agency and offender stakeholders were engaged through personal
interviews and surveys. Many of them also participated in one of three stakeholder sessions which
elicited their input regarding gaps, barriers, community resources, and innovative programming for the
criminal justice community of Kern County. Their input was captured into five key focus areas. From
the data collected, the Ad Hoc committee developed Mission, Vision, and Values statements (listed
below) which were approved at the July 15, 2015, CCP meeting. The Strategic Plan is a fluid document
as the CCP proceeds with refining and further developing Strategic Plan initiatives.

The Strategic Plan was relied heavily upon when determining the focus areas for the Request for
Applications (RFA) released in September 2015, and the Request for Proposals (RFP) released in June
2016, June 2018, and June 2022. The CCP will continue to utilize the Strategic Plan when determining
areas of need for the adult criminal justice population.

Mission:

The Community Corrections Partnership is committed to
working together in order to promote a safer community
through effective strategies.

Vision:
The Community Corrections Partnership provides leadership
through the partnering agencies and partnerships with the
community to encourage, support, and network effectively for
a safer community by doing the following:

= Decrease criminal recidivism through data-driven
decision making which addresses substance use,
criminogenic factors, and mental health issues

Increase offenders’ successful reintegration into

the community using research-based strategies and
interventions

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Encourage and support effective prevention
strategies for members in the community

Create opportunities for self-sufficiency among
offenders

Values:

Community Safety: The CCP is committed to decisions which
prioritize a safe and secure community, which increases the
quality of life for all people in Kern County.

Accountability: The CCP holds itself and its partners to all
established standards, agreements, and policies.

Fiscally Responsible: The CCP believes in being good fiscal
stewards of the public funds entrusted to the Partnership.

Research Matters: The CCP recognizes the importance of
outcome-driven decision making by implementing current
research and evidence-based practices.

Transparency: The CCP meetings are open to the public, all
reports and agendas are available for review, and public input
is welcomed.

Change: The CCP acknowledges people can change when they
are willing and provided the opportunity and resources to
succeed.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Evidence-Based Programming

Realignment encourages counties to focus on community-based corrections programs and evidence-
based practices. To this end, Kern County has focused on the use of proven assessment tools,
evidence-based practices, and the addition of evidence-based programs specifically to reduce
recidivism and ensure public safety.

The Kern County Probation Department and Sheriff's Office utilize the Static Risk and Needs
Assessment (SRNA). The SRNA can accurately predict the level of an offender’s risk to recidivate which
allows targeted supervision for those at higher risk to re-offend. These departments have also
implemented the dynamic needs portion of the assessment tool, the Offender Needs Assessment
(ONA). The ONA is a critical aspect of Programming and Supervision plans that focus on addressing
the specific criminogenic needs of the offender.

Behavioral Health and Recovery Services’ (KernBHRS) Substance Use Disorder Division bases
screening and assessment on the American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria that covers
six dimensions including withdrawal potential, biomedical conditions, psychiatric conditions, motivation
for recovery, relapse or other problem potential and recovery environment. The Stressful Life
Experiences Screening (SLES) is utilized in substance use disorder treatment programs in order to
gauge trauma that individuals may have experienced and to address it in a trauma-informed
environment. These tools are strength-based, multidimensional assessments that address the patient’s
needs, barriers, liabilities, and willingness to participate in treatment. The screening tools also
incorporate clients’ strengths, resources, and support structure within their environment. These
assessments are utilized in the creation of treatment plans in order to accurately place individuals into
programming. Departments are committed to continuing to implement the use of assessments as a
valuable evidence-base tool to most effectively serve the AB 109 population.

In addition to utilizing these various assessment tools, Probation Officers, Sheriff's Deputies, and
KernBHRS staff have been trained in Motivational Interviewing (MI). Ml is a conversational method that
assists staff with developing intrinsic motivation within clients in order to change behavior. Once a
Supervision, Programming, and/or Treatment plan is developed individuals are referred to various
evidence-based programs.

Evidence-based programs are valuable assets due to their significant reduction of recidivism when
completed with fidelity. The Probation Department’s Adult Programs Center (APC) provides validated
evidence-based programs to address specific criminogenic needs. APC offers Thinking for a Change
(T4C), Aggression Replacement Training (ART) and Moral Reconation Therapy (MRT) and utilizes
Effective Practices in Community Supervision (EPICS) which is an evidence-based approach to case
management.

The Sheriff's Office Programs Unit of the Compliance Section has partnered with the KernBHRS’
Substance Use Disorder Division and Correctional Behavioral Health to provide evidence-based
curriculum to individuals in custody. Inmates are offered ART, Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT),
Matrix Program, MRT, Seeking Safety, and T4C. The classes equip offenders with new ways of

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




thinking, substance use disorder treatment, cognitive behavioral therapy, and coping skills. KernBHRS
also provides these programs as outpatient services after release from custody.

The Joint Evaluation Team (JET), a distinct subset of the Mobile Evaluation Team (MET), is an AB 109
co-response team uniquely qualified to assess an individual's crisis care service needs and
simultaneously address public safety. JET incorporates a co-response model and is comprised of a
staff member from KernBHRS and an officer from the Kern County Sheriff's Office. JET responds to
crisis situations and visits a prioritized list of AB 109 individuals with mental health and/or substance
use disorder issues. This collaborative approach places a law enforcement officer and member of
KernBHRS in the same vehicle for the first time in Kern County, increasing the level of collaborative
crisis care services. This collaboration leads to better service for individuals in crisis and heightened
public safety.

A key component to the success of evidence-based programming is attributed to the collaboration
between CCP agencies. The Probation Department shares data such as SRNA scores with the Sheriff’s
Office which is used as an added element for release and programming decisions. There is also a high
level of inter-departmental cooperation between the Sheriff's Office and KernBHRS.

Many evidence-based programs offered to clients are facilitated by CCP agencies. These collaborative
efforts foster greater communication and helps contribute to the success of programs. The increased
use of evidence-based tools and inter-departmental cooperation is a positive by-product of
Realignment.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Data Collection, Research, and Analysis

The passage of AB 109 compelled department heads to review the amount of cooperation, coordination,
and collaboration that currently existed between county agencies. As a result, the department heads
sought to gain an understanding of what impact AB 109 would have on individual departments and the
county. Each department has assigned key knowledgeable staff to formulate innovative ideas and
solutions, to make well informed data-driven decisions on a timely basis, and to produce results in
accordance with these observations.

In October 2011, the Kern County Probation Department created the Research, Analysis, and Data
(RAD) unit to assist Probation and the CCP with data collection and reporting. In fulfillment of these
goals, the RAD unit provides the following services:

Collection and reporting of quarterly dashboard reports, Carry Forward Requests, Growth
Funds, and Contingencies to the Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) and the Board of
Supervisors on AB 109 activity in the community

Incorporate evidence and research into program development and policymaking

The submission of annual data reports to the Chief Probation Officers Association of California
(CPOC), which report on data elements pertaining to Post Release Community Supervision
(PRCS), Mandatory Supervision, felony probation and youth offenders

Maintaining and processing financial reimbursement information, attending monthly meetings,
and conducting annual trainings for the Street Interdiction Team (SIT)

Prepares, conducts, and administers the Request for Proposal (RFP) and the Request for
Application (RFA) competitive grant processes for AB 109 funds, which are distributed through
the Community-Based Organizations (CBO) Program

Conducts program evaluations, such as the DRC evaluation

Manages large inter-departmental projects, such as the Kern Targeted Outcomes Project

The Sheriff's Office is also committed to data collection, research, and data analysis. The Sheriff’s Office
has partnered with California State University, Bakersfield (CSUB) to examine the effects of the
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) program. In 2013, the Department received grant
funding from the Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) for the RSAT program, an
expansion of the Matrix Program. The RSAT program focuses on intensive, outpatient, substance use
treatment which requires extensive data collection. Through the RSAT program, the Sheriff's Office
provides two Office Service Assistants to collect and monitor data elements such as drug tests, class
participation, ONA scores, recidivism, and others.

Additionally, the Department staffs two Sheriff Program Technicians (SPT) to collect and monitor data.
One SPT is designated to evidence-based programming and works closely with Sheriff Deputies in the
Programs Unit to monitor out-of-custody case management, recidivism, and other factors. The second
SPT is dedicated to the CBO Program and receives daily census data from CBOs. They also track
financial information, enroliment and waitlists, and successful completions or failures.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




In FY 2024/25, KernBHRS transitioned to a new electronic health record (EHR) system. The transition
period required the department to utilize alternative methods to capture program data, while work
continued on new reporting structures.

Since the implementation of AB 109, the Probation Department, Sheriff's Office, and KernBHRS have
continued to participate in data sharing to effectively serve the population. The three departments
collaborate and pool data to report CBO information (such as financial information, number of
participants, services received, etc.) to the CCP, Board of Supervisors, and state agencies on an as-
needed basis.

The Probation Department has participated in the Public Policy Institute of California (PPIC) pilot project
by contributing to the state-wide research project to track and assess the reorganization of California’s
incarceration systems through data sharing.

In FY 2024/25, data collection, research, and reporting remain significant as decision making will be
based upon data extracted and reported, correlations between variables, and statistical analysis. Plans
include further development of data tracker definitions and working within the development of the new
system(s) to expand and/or improve the capacity for data collection, measurement, and evaluation
training. Additionally, direct collaboration with other counties will be implemented, when possible, to
facilitate networking opportunities and the development of new ideas to best serve AB 109 clients. The
new CBO contract period will continue to provide services through calendar years 2024 and 2025. An
annual report template was added in the new contracts to include consistent data elements such as
demographics, drug screening, length of stay, program completion, supervision status, employment,
programs and services.

County staff remain active on the State level to ensure Kern County is receiving all crucial and available
resources, access to accurate and useful information, and is recognized as an important and significant
member of the Central Valley community. Each year, information will be provided to the CCP and the
Board of Supervisors that provides a comprehensive assessment of all AB 109 implementation and
Realignment activities.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




FY 2024/25 Plan

Every year the CCP is tasked with developing a new plan which will address the pressing issues of
Realignment in Kern County. The guiding principles remain public safety, reducing recidivism, and data-
driven decision making. Each individual agency’s specific plans are explained in the following pages.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Probation Department

AB 109 redefined the California criminal justice system resulting in significant changes to the Adult
Divisions of the Probation Department. Since the inception of Realignment, approximately 3,000
additional felony offenders are now under the supervision of the Probation Department. However, there
are much more significant changes beyond the sheer numbers. Real philosophical and pragmatic
transformations have permeated the way Probation does business. Evidence-based practices and data
collection are the cornerstones of our recidivism reducing strategy. Breaking the cycle of re-offending
is essential to ensuring long-term safety in our County. The Probation Department is on the cutting edge
in this arena using such tools as evidence-based assessments, individualized case plans, response
matrix, and criminogenic needs targeted programming. The benefits of reducing recidivism are
evidenced by the reduction in victimizations and significant systematic cost savings. A detailed
explanation of Probation’s plan follows below.

Evidence-Based Assessment Tool

The foundation of the Department's movement toward evidence-based practices is a proven
assessment tool. The Static Risk and Needs Assessment (SRNA) can predict with significant accuracy
the level of an offender’s risk to recidivate. This allows targeted supervision for those at higher risk to
re-offend, thereby utilizing the Department’s resources to greater capacity, efficiency, and effectiveness.
Every offender under supervision is assessed with an SRA (Static Risk Assessment). This provides
needed direction with caseload processing and prioritization. This tool also reveals the fundamental
differences between the different supervision statuses (see Chart 1).

Chart 1

Static Risk Assessment (SRA)
Offender's Risk to Recidivate

Moderate High Drug High Property High Violent

PRCS MS =FP

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Based on this information, the realigned offenders (i.e., Post Release Community Supervision and
Mandatory Supervision) are at a higher risk to reoffend than traditional felony probationers in higher risk
levels such as High Drug, High Property, and High Violence levels.

The Probation Department shares SRA scores with the Sheriff's Office. This information is used as
another element in decision making for releases and programming. The increased use of evidence-
based tools and inter-department cooperation is a positive by-product of Realignment. The Probation
Department is committed to cooperating with all of our criminal justice system partners. We all benefit
when we share information and business tools.

In addition to the SRA, the Department has implemented widespread use of the dynamic needs portion
of the assessment tool, the Offender Needs Assessment (ONA). The ONA is a critical part of Probation’s
supervision plan post incarceration. The ONA identifies the offender’s criminogenic needs and helps
develop an individual case plan to address those needs. The Probation Department utilizes a holistic
supervision paradigm. Holding offenders accountable is a priority; however, we must also attempt to
place them in the best situation to succeed. This can be accomplished by matching their needs to the
appropriate services. The Department is committed to conducting ONAs on all offenders on high-risk
caseloads.

Day Reporting Center

One of the Probation Department’s most innovative programs resulting from Realignment is the Day
Reporting Center (DRC). The DRC has a capacity to serve 100 high risk offenders at a time. A previous

internal study of the effectiveness of the DRC showed the positive impact the program has on
participants by significantly reducing recidivism. Graduates recidivated only 30% of the time compared
to the control group at 53%; felony recidivism was 14% compared to 37% (see Charts 2 and 3).

Chart 2 Chart 3
Control Group DRC Graduate Group
Recidivism Rates Recidivism Rates

= Felony = Felony
B Misdemeanor m Misdemeanor

m No New Conviction No New Conviction

The impact was even more pronounced when the actual number of criminal cases was examined. The
control group produced a ratio of 1.07 criminal cases to offender while the graduates only produced .43
cases to 1 offender (see Chart 4, top of page 15). The full study can be located at
http://www.kernprobation.com/ab109ccp-realignment/plans-and-reports/.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Chart 4
Ratio of Total Cases per Group

1.50

1.00

0.50

0.00

Graduate
= Total 0.43

In addition to our internal study, there are national studies which reflect the positive benefits of day
reporting centers.

The DRC is contracted with GEO Reentry, a company that operates similar reporting centers throughout
the nation. GEO Reentry has a long history of successfully reducing recidivism with their programs.
They use the same assessment tool as the Probation Department, formalize specific case plans to
address criminogenic needs, and provide a wide variety of evidence-based programs (EBP’s) and other
services onsite. Criminogenic needs related to employment, education, aggression, anti-social
behavior, and substance use can all be addressed in one location. Key components of the DRC include
Cognitive Behavioral Therapy, job readiness, substance use testing, daily reporting, sanctions, rewards,
and supervision in conjunction with GEO Reentry and the assigned Deputy Probation Officers (DPO).
The DRC can change the lives of offenders and break the cycle of criminal behavior, which is crucial to
decreasing recidivism, reducing crime, ensuring public safety, and limiting societal and monetary costs.
The Probation Department has witnessed the incredible and positive transformation of DRC graduates
and believes this program is key to reducing recidivism and complying with the AB 109 legislative intent.

Adult Programs Center

The Adult Programs Center (APC) is a program within the Adult Programs and Supports Unit of the AB
109 Services Division which focuses on delivering evidence-based programs (EBP) to adult offenders
on Felony Probation, Mandatory Supervision, and Post Release Community Supervision. APC is unique
in that the program is mostly delivered by non-sworn Probation Program Specialists. These Specialists
are provided extensive training in numerous EBP modalities to address the specific criminogenic needs
of the offender, such as employment, education, aggression, anti-social peers, anti-social behavior, and
substance use. Currently, APC delivers the following EBP modalities: Thinking for a Change (T4C),
Aggression Replacement Training (ART), Moral Reconation Therapy (MRT), Cognitive Behavioral
Interventions Substance Abuse (CBI-SUA) and Effective Practices in Community Supervision (EPICS).
The modalities involve both group and individual counseling sessions and have demonstrated to reduce
recidivism through empirical evidence.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25 15




The program consists of four phases and can be completed between 9-14 months. The first phase
focuses on individual EPICS sessions which focus on goals, identify roadblocks and making a plan to
remove those roadblocks. The second, third and fourth phases focuses on the completing three EPB
modalities including the above classes of T4C, ART, MRT and/or CBI-SUA.

The program provides day and evening classes to best accommodate participants’ schedules providing
flexibility to enhance their likelihood of completion.

After completion on the four phases, participants are placed in aftercare. During aftercare, participants
continue to meet with Specialists who assist participants in job searches, finding resources, and building
life skills. All participants that complete the program are eligible to participate in an annual graduation
ceremony held on their behalf to celebrate their achievements with family and loved ones.

Dedicated onsite Deputy Probation Officers (DPO) provide daily truancy and retention interventions for
the APC. Should an offender not attend the program for an unexcused reason, the officers attempt to
locate and return the participant to the program. This is essential to improving performance outcomes
as participants stay in the program longer and are more likely to complete the program due to increased
supervision and swift accountability. For those that choose non-compliance, their behavior is addressed
in a timely and immediate manner. The onsite DPOs are also trained in the EBPs used at APC and can
reinforce what is being delivered by the specialists. Additionally, the onsite DPOs assist with any
behavioral problems and participant conflicts, thus providing the specialists and participants with added
security and convenient access to an officer.

The APC is constantly adjusting and evolving to meet the needs of the offender and the community. As
a result, the APC continues to make changes within the program as it grows and is focused on
increasing the delivery of services through the following components: job development, education
coordination, trauma-informed care, and substance use treatment with drug/alcohol testing.

Supervision

As a result of Realignment, the Probation Department’s supervision responsibilities now include PRCS
offenders, Mandatory Supervision offenders, and an increased number of felony probationers.
Regardless of the supervision status, certain supervision principles are universal. This includes
manageable caseload sizes with the goal of continuing to improve the officer to offender ratio. Smaller
ratios provide officers with more time to dedicate to each interaction, which enhances the effectiveness
of evidence-based practices.

A Response Matrix, including redirection, additional terms and conditions, treatment, electronic
monitoring, flash incarcerations, the DRC and APC, community-based organizations, and formal
violations resulting in custody time, is being used to address violation behaviors. A response
commensurate with the nature of the violation, the number of prior violations and the offender’s risk
level will be imposed. Responses will be swift, certain, specifics and graduated. As part of the Response
Matrix, appropriate incentives will also be utilized to facilitate and reinforce the positive behaviors of
offenders. These responses follow the philosophy of accountability and opportunity to help ensure the

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




goal of reducing recidivism among this population. Research shows that the incentive to sanction ratio
should be 4:1 to be effective. The Response Matrix was designed to be clear and easy to follow which
fosters consistency in officers’ responses to offender behaviors. DPOs also utilize Motivational
Interviewing, a technique which has been shown to develop an offender’s intrinsic motivation to initiate
a change in their own behavior.

Investigations

Investigations staff have responded to the need for additional assessments, increased court reports
and other needed services. These staff help ensure the Court continues to receive pre-sentence
investigation reports in a timely manner and that current courtroom coverage can be maintained. They
also create an SRA for every Felony Probation and Mandatory Supervision offender who is sentenced
locally. Investigations staff play an integral part in the criminal justice system. Several AB 109 positions
have been added to these units to help compensate for the increased work as a result of Realignment.

Pre-Trial

On March 25, 2021, the Supreme Court of California authored an opinion affirming the First Appellate
District decision, In re HUMPHREY. At issue was the setting of bail and the defendant’s ability to pay
that bail. The Supreme Court of California held true that bail must be set in an amount that is affordable
to a defendant. A Court must make a finding the defendant has the ability to pay bail but willfully refuses
in order for a detention to be based solely on monetary bail conditions. Absent that finding, the Court
must find the defendant to be a danger to the community, a danger to a specific victim, or is not likely
to make future court hearings to continue any pre-trial detention. Additionally, if the Court makes a clear
and convincing finding as to one of those considerations, the Court must still consider less restrictive
options to detention.

To comply with this decision, the Probation Department created two Pre-trial Units to assist the Court
in making informed decisions regarding pre-trial defendants and to provide monitoring services for those
defendants released from custody. The assessment unit gathers and submits a summation of the
defendant’s criminal history at the time of arraignment. The monitoring unit provides monitoring services
based on the level of monitoring designated by the Court and defendants are contacted monthly, bi-
weekly or weekly via phone and/or home calls. Additionally, GPS monitoring is available on select
defendants.

Research, Analysis, and Data Unit

The Research, Analysis, and Data (RAD) Unit is responsible for data collection, state and local
reporting, and program evaluations. The unit has also been involved in several large projects, including
the Kern Targeted Outcomes Project (formerly the Pew-MacArthur Results First Initiative), the data
collection effort lead by the Public Policy Institute of California, and several Request for
Proposals/Applications. Within the RAD Unit, two Supervising Departmental Analysts, four
Departmental Analysts, two Administrative Coordinators, and an Office Services Specialist are in part
funded with Realignment dollars. The Probation Department understands the importance of, and has
committed to, research and data.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Information Technology

AB 109 has created numerous IT challenges for the Probation Department. The Department is the hub
of Realignment data collection for the CCP and the County. Integration of information, data reports and
complex recidivism formulas are all necessary and important components of the overall success of
Realignment. Furthermore, the changes in the law have created the need for additional reports and
case management system (CMS) capacities. There has also been an increased request for information
from State agencies and organizations for numerous studies. The Probation Department must maintain
a sufficient level of IT services to meet these challenges.

Support Staff

Four Office Service Technicians (OST’s), one Office Service Specialist (OSS), and one Senior Office
Service Specialist (SOSS) are specifically assigned to the Adult Probation Services and AB 109
Services Divisions. These positions are needed to support the increased work associated with reception
areas, reports, filing, and miscellaneous paperwork. Additionally, ten Probation Technicians assigned
to Adult Probation Services, AB 109 Services, and Adult Court Services Divisions assist DPOs directly
with their case management and pre-trial related duties. Support staff play a vital role in the
Department’s success in meeting mission critical goals and in the implementation of programs.

Collaboratives

The Probation Department has maintained and grown numerous collaboratives since the beginning of
Realignment. It is clear that to accomplish the Department’s goals of public safety and reducing
recidivism, a county-wide team approach is needed. Some of these collaboratives include ETR,
KernBHRS, CBOs, and other law enforcement agencies. ETR receives referrals from DPOs for AB 109
employment and work experience programs. These programs offer offenders a way to improve their job
skills and readiness for employment. Officers work closely with both mental health professionals and
substance use specialists from KernBHRS. Certain offenders must have their behavioral health and
substance use issues addressed before they can move forward with their overall rehabilitation. The
Probation Department directly refers offenders into a number of community-based organizations which
address many different issues, including transitional housing. These additional services increase the
likelihood of successful completion from supervision and are a welcome and needed resource for
officers. Probation works closely with other law enforcement agencies on a regular basis and is an
integral member of the Street Interdiction Team (SIT), a collaborative operation throughout the County.

Operating Costs

To achieve the stated goals and objectives as listed in this section, there are numerous associated
operating costs. These costs include office and field equipment, licensing rights, vehicle maintenance
and fuel, training, overtime, and more.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Probation Department’'s FY 2024/25 AB 109 Base Allocation

Position/ltem

Cost per Unit

Cost for 1 Year

Probation Division Director

$292,621

$585,242

Probation Supervisor

$217,616

$1,088,080

Deputy Probation Officer I

$200,343

$3,005,145

Deputy Probation Officer

o
N

$172,064

$10,667,968

Probation Program Specialist

—_
o

$115,803

$1,158,030

Probation Technician

-
o

$102,720

$1,027,200

Sr. Office Services Specialist

$114,486

$114,486

Office Services Specialist

$100,772

$201,544

Office Services Technician

$92,018

$368,072

Departmental Analyst

$122,087

$244,174

Administrative Coordinator

$127,872

$127,872

Database Analyst

$154,169

$154,169

Programmer

$179,063

$179,063

Technical Support Specialist

A Al Al Al NN NN -

$121,468

$121,468

Total Salaries & Benefits

$19,042,513

Day Reporting Center (DRC)

$1,164,996

Operating Expenses

$2,567,835

Total Services & Supplies

$3,732,831

Total

$22,775,344

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Sheriff’s Office

Since its implementation in 2011, AB 109 has redirected numerous offenders, who would have
previously been sentenced to state prison, to county jails for their sentences. This shift increased the
jail population during the first three years of Realignment, forcing the Sheriff's Office to release as many
as 9,500 inmates early per year to keep the population under federally stipulated limits. In the wake of
Proposition 47, which took effect in 2014 and converted many felony crimes into misdemeanors, the
number of arrests and the need for early releases declined significantly. Despite continuing challenges,
the Sheriff's Office continues its AB 109 related efforts to reduce recidivism.

Early releases have again increased in recent years as portions of the Sheriff's Office jail capacity
remain unoccupied due to staffing challenges. As of April 12, 2024, there were 4,413 early releases
(generally called “Fed Caps” and “Class Cites”) in FY 2023/24. Fed cap’s and non-violent unsentenced
felonies were cited to prevent incarcerated persons population levels from exceeding the limitations
imposed by the Anderson v. Kern court order.

The chart below illustrates the number of arrests made each quarter of FY 2023/24, along with the types
of releases during the same time periods. The types of arrest and releases were consistent throughout
each quarter. Please note, the fourth quarter data for each category, represented by the gold bars,
indicate lower numbers because data for May and June of 2024 was not available at the time of this
report.

ARRESTS AND RELEASES BY QUARTER

PROMISE TO CLASS CITES SURETY TIME SERVED FED CAPS MONTHLY
APPEAR BONDS ARRESTS

W JULY-SEPT 2023 OCT-DEC 23 JAN-MARCH 24 Apr-24

Realignment also sentenced individuals to county jail for terms similar in length to what they would have
served in state prison. Whereas the maximum pre-realignment jail sentence was generally one-year,
post-Realignment inmates are often sentenced to two years or longer. The longest sentence currently
being served in the Sheriff’s jail is three years.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




The Challenges of the Post-AB 109 Incarcerated Population

Apart from the number of inmates and length of their sentences, the current incarcerated population is
qualitatively different than that of the pre-realignment era. The more challenging nature of the post-
Realignment jail population can be illustrated by comparing a snapshot of the current jail population
with statistics presented in the 2011 Jail Needs Assessment. Of the 1,703 individuals in custody on
April 12, 2024:

2% were classified as high-risk/staff assaultive, as opposed to 0.5% in 2010;

Approximately 15% were in custody for murder or attempted murder;

.5% were administratively separated (housed by themselves), as compared to approximately 3%
to 5% of inmates in 2010. In FY 2023/24 significant efforts were made to minimize administrative
separation housing, aiming to provide incarcerated individuals with more out of cell time.

55% were gang affiliated, as opposed to 33% in 2010; Of the gang-affiliated inmates currently in
custody, 40% were charged with violent crimes;

88% were felons, compared to 84% in 2010;

Approximately 58% were receiving mental health services, as compared to the 2010 estimate of
15%.

The chart below illustrates the inmate security levels in 2010. In FY 2023/24, the maximum-security
inmates comprise approximately 28% of the current jail population, as opposed to only 2% in 2010.

Security Level Distribution
2010 JNA Estimate

Maximum Security
2% - ,
Minimum Security
13%

Medium Security
85%

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




AB 109 also created a core of inmates serving longer sentences in the jails. Long-term inmates tend
to present more challenging inmate management issues, as they often require more services, including
medical and mental health care. Additionally, they tend to become familiar and comfortable in their
surroundings, learning to manipulate procedures and circumvent security. As they become more
skilled, they influence shorter term inmates to act in a similar fashion.

The above-mentioned increase in gang activity among inmates poses considerable security challenges.
Serious gang rivalries and gang-politics are key drivers of violence among inmates, which has increased
markedly in the wake of Realignment. Coordinated criminal gang activities, such as the smuggling of
narcotics, cell phones, and other contraband have also increased.

The increase in inmates needing special housing has also taken its toll on jail operations. Inmates who
require special housing create a significant draw on jail resources in terms of available beds, the
capacity of holding cells, and the staff time needed to manage and supervise these inmates.

These changes in the inmate population have posed significant security and operational challenges in
the Sheriff's jails. AB 109 funding continues to play an important role in helping the Sheriff's Office meet

these challenges.

Meeting the Challenge

The Kern Justice Facility has helped to mitigate some of the above-mentioned issues by providing more
flexible housing better suited to the post-realignment jail population. That said, the Sheriff’'s Office has
continued to improve safety and security in other areas. AB 109 funding has supported these efforts,
funding improvements such as purchasing enclosures to expand program offerings at the Pre-trial
facility, as well as accommodating the relocation of the Inmate Reception Center (IRC) along with
associated improvements. AB 109 also funds Bakersfield Adult School (BAS) to provide educational
and vocational services for the incarcerated population.

While these improvements can have a positive impact on the safety and security of the jail system,
there is no substitute for dedicated and well-trained staff. Staffing continues to be a struggle for the
Sheriff's Office. While academies and other hiring efforts work to mitigate this issue, keeping up with
the rate of attrition continues to be a priority. AB 109 funding continues to play an important role in
staffing the jails and operating various programs related to Realignment.

Programs and Services

The Sheriffs Office continues to provide quality inmate programs grounded in evidence-based
practices. Program staff facilitate empirically proven curriculum to incarcerated individuals that focuses
on cognitive behavioral therapy. Evidence-based practices strive to meet the specific needs of
incarcerated persons by integrating clinical expertise, external scientific evidence, and client
perspectives. The reduction of recidivism remains the core mission of program delivery.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Proper assessment is the key to ensuring incarcerated persons are provided the treatment, services,
and a level of supervision appropriate to their needs and risk of recidivating. Sheriff's program staff is
trained in evidence-based assessment techniques that improve the selection of programs and services
specific to an individual participant’s criminogenic needs. These techniques also help to create a re-
entry case plan and link participants to available resources upon release.

In FY 2023/24, 79 individuals attended evidence-based and rehabilitative classes while in custody.
Some of the evidence-based classes being offered within the jail facilities include the following:

The Residential Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) Program is a program in which
participants are housed, to the degree feasible, separately from the general population. The
treatment program includes a 100 day in-custody component followed by a four-to six-month-
long aftercare (out-of-custody) component. RSAT includes several evidence-based curricula
including the following, some of which are also provided outside of the RSAT program:

The Matrix Model is an intensive drug treatment program that teaches inmates about their
addictions and helps them identify and examine ways to cope with high-risk situations that
lead to relapse.

Aggression Replacement Training (ART) utilizes multi-component, cognitive-behavioral
treatment to promote pro-social behavior by addressing factors that contribute to aggression.

Moral Reconation Therapy (MRT) is a cognitive-behavioral treatment strategy designed
specifically for offender populations. The purpose of MRT is to instill and develop higher levels
of moral reasoning in inmates, which leads to moral thinking and behavior. It also helps
inmates acknowledge how their behaviors affect others and helps them learn to change their
behaviors to more positive social behaviors and beliefs.

Educational and Vocational Services: The Bakersfield Adult School (BAS), a part of the Kern
High School District, has worked in partnership with the Kern County Sheriff's Office for over
three decades. BAS is one of the largest partner agencies currently working with the Sheriff's
Office. Approximately 758 inmates attended education based and vocational courses during
their incarceration in FY 2023/24. There continues to be strong relationship between
educational programs and the reduction of recidivism.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Class Participants
FY 2023/24

Vocational
Classes, 112

Rehabilitative and
Evidence Based
Classes, 79

Educational
Classes, 646

Moving forward, RSAT has successfully completed three cohorts and is in the process of an additional
cohort for FY 2023/24. Additionally, RSAT has continued its modified curriculum to accommodate
Spanish speakers and has increased the minimum class size to eighteen enrolled participants per
cohort, with a target of twenty. Furthermore, the Kern County Sheriff's Office applied for the RSAT grant
this fiscal year and has been awarded the grant for an additional three years.

RSAT has successfully completed 3 cohorts during FY 2023/24. With the assistance of our specialized
programs deputy, we continue to accommodate Spanish speaking only individuals to reach more
incarcerated persons and reduce barriers.

Bakersfield Adult School offers several courses such as Substance Abuse Prevention, Anger
Management, Parenting, GED Preparation/Testing as needed, and Batterer Intervention. Many of the
classes offered are approved by the courts, as well as the Department of Human Services, Child
Protective Services, Probation, and State Parole.

The Lerdo staff dining facility is operated by in-custody program participants who are taught basic food
service skills and industry standard equipment training. As of April 12", 2024, we have awarded 73
cafeteria certificates in partnership with the Bakersfield Adult School Program. Participants of this
program can also earn a ServSafe certificate, which improves their employment marketability when
applying for jobs after release. During FY 2023/24, 19 students obtained ServSafe certificates. The
number of class participants in FY 2023/24 doubled in comparison to the previous fiscal year.

Partner Services

The Sheriff's Office collaborates with numerous governmental agencies and community-based
organizations to improve the provision of services that help remove barriers to successful community
re-entry for the inmate population. For example, the Sheriff's Office continues its established partnership
with the Department of Child Support Services (DCSS) to assist inmates in resolving child support
issues. In FY 2023/24, 120 inmates utilized this service as of April 12, 2024.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




The Sheriff's Office also maintains a strong working relationship with America’s Job Center (AJC). AJC
staff located at the Lerdo Facilities provides employment services to in-custody participants with
additional referrals to AJC services after release. AJC continues to work with the Sheriff's Office to
develop a “small bites” curriculum model to better serve participants with short jail stays, who can find
it difficult to complete longer classes before their time in custody is over. The “small bites” model will
allow for flexible participation in one or more short-term classes as an alternative to committing to a
longer program.
Sheriff's Virtual Jail

The Virtual Jail program allows the Sheriff's Office to maintain varying degrees of oversight and
compliance monitoring for released participants. Many Virtual Jail inmates participate in mental health
services and substance use treatment programs. Some continue to attend educational or vocational
programs. There are three Virtual Jail programs: Sheriff’'s Parole (SP), the Work Release Program,
and the Electronic Monitoring Program (EMP). The overall goal of the Virtual Jail is to reduce recidivism
and to help participants reconnect with their families and become gainfully employed, law-abiding
citizens.

In FY 2023/24, as of April 22, 2024, EMP and Sheriffs Parole combined had a total of 449
participants. For the fiscal year so far, 252 participants had successfully completed the EMP and
Sheriffs Parole program. However, 67 participants violated the terms of the program and were
subsequently returned to custody.

The Virtual Jail staff has continued its emphasis on drug testing to ensure compliance among program
participants. EMP staff conducted 87 drug tests with a 67% negative test rate. Responses to
participants who tested positive included admonishment, discipline, arrest for violation of their terms of
supervision, or a referral to the Probation Department’s Day Reporting Center (DRC), the BHRS
Gateway Team, or NA/AA meetings to help in rehabilitation.

More than 137 remote alcohol detection devices have been deployed among released inmates who
had convictions for driving under the influence through April 22, 2024. The remote alcohol detection
devices require participants to test randomly at least five times per day and use facial recognition
software to confirm the identity of the users. In FY 2023/24, these devices conducted a total of 52,362
breath tests on participants with the following results: 46,434 passed tests, 71 failed tests, and 5,784
missed or incomplete tests. This amounts to an overall compliance rate of 89 percent. Participants
who missed a scheduled test were contacted and required to test immediately. Those who tested
positive were admonished, disciplined, and/or arrested for a violation of their terms of supervision.

Moving Forward

Proposed AB 109 Base Allocation Funding for FY 2024/25

The Sheriff's Office proposes allocation of its FY 2024/25 base funding in the amount of $25,151,512
in accordance with the established 39.27% of the overall base allocation. The funding will be allocated
to fund the following:

e Purchase of body worn cameras and docking stations for detentions staff

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Intercoms in jail cells

Upgrade Pre-Trial Facility recreation yard enclosures

Cameras for our transportation buses

Increased Salary and Benefits Costs - To cover increased personnel costs. These costs include
recent salary increases, and escalating benefits costs (e.g., health care, retirement)

The chart below shows the recommended Sheriff's Office AB 109 Budget for FY 2024/25 including
updated staffing costs.

Sheriff's Office Proposed FY 2024/25 AB 109 Allocation

POSITION / ITEM COST PER UNIT | ANNUAL COST
$190,965 $8,020,530
$212,625 $4,039,875
$115,451 $923,608
$199,794 $998,970

$90,015 $630,105
$242,232 $484,464
$107,885 $431,540
$212,429 $424,858
$334,590 $334,590

$96,739 $290,217
$284,166 $284,166
$272,674 $272,674
$121,686 $243,372
$234,463 $234,463

$90,015 $180,030
$172,614 $172,614
$128,338 $128,338

N
N

Detentions Deputy

Deputy Sheriff Il CA

Program Specialist

Deputy Sheriff Il C

Sheriff's Support Technician

Senior Deputy Sheriff

Sheriff's Aide

Detentions Senior Deputy

Sheriff's Lieutenant

Program Technician

Detentions Lieutenant

Sheriff Sergeant

Admin Coordinator

Detentions Sergeant

Light Vehicle Driver

Programmer Il/Systems Analyst I

Info Syst/Technical Support Specialist Il

Senior Maintenance Worker $104,950 $104,950

Sheriff's Support Specialist $97,111 $97,111
Total Salaries & Benefits $18,296,475

Uniform allowance for $98,000

LE/Detentions/Sheriffs Aides
Overtime $342,425

Total Services and Supplies $6,414,612

Total Proposed FY 2023/24 AB 109 $25,151,5612
Allocation

—_
O

2|22 IN(=2 N 222 N|AN(N|O1| 00

—

The Kern County Sheriff's Office is committed to work in partnership with our community to enhance
the safety, security, and quality of life for the residents and visitors of Kern County through professional
public safety services.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services Department

Since the implementation of AB 109 in October 2011, Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services
(KernBHRS) has expanded its treatment programs and significantly increased services to meet the
needs of criminal justice involved individuals. Through AB 109 Public Safety Realignment Funding, the
goal of KernBHRS is to address mental health and substance use disorders of AB 109 designated
individuals. Prioritizing treatment in these areas aids in reducing recidivism in hospitalization,
incarceration, and days of homelessness for the population served. The department’s treatment
strategies target life skills development, anger management, psychological trauma, and errors in
reasoning or criminal thinking. Services utilize evidence-based and/or best practice strategies focusing
on mental iliness and substance use.

In FY 2023/24, KernBHRS transitioned to a new electronic health record (EHR) system. The transition
period required the department to utilize alternative methods to capture program data, while work
continued on new reporting structures. Between July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 (April, May & June 2024
data are prorated), KernBHRS provided a total of 4,562 services to individuals assigned to AB 109. Of
those, 312 individuals were treated in both Mental Health (MH) and Substance Use Disorder (SUD)
service systems. The graph (Table 1) below reflects the number of AB 109 assigned individuals who
were provided mental health and/or substance use disorder services by the department since 2011.

Table 1
Individuals Served by Fiscal Year

3863

3261
3200 oo 3122 3179
2868
2530 2474
2085 2357 2248 2243
2017 2025 2013
1672 694
1437
‘ L 837

744 07 I 699

6
|I[:] 182 171

July 11- July 12- July 13- July 14- July 15- July 16- July 17- July 18- July 19- July 20- July 21- July 22- July 23-
June 12 June 13 June 14 June 15 June 16 June 17 June 18 June 19 June 20 June 21 June 22 June 23 June 24

M Mental Health  u Substance Use Disorder

*FY 2023/24 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated) - July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Programs and Services

Behavioral Health In-Custody Services

Within the Kern County Sheriff's Office (KCSO) Detention Facilities (CRF, Justice, and Pre-Trial), the
KernBHRS Correctional Behavioral Health Team (CBH) operates entirely onsite to adequately provide
behavioral health and SUD services to the incarcerated population. Within the System of Care, CBH is
an access point, a treatment team, and an adjunct team that facilitates linkage to community teams and
resources for individuals awaiting release.

CBH encourages the in-custody population to participate in both individual and group services to
improve life and coping skills for individuals with behavioral health and substance use disorders. During
the last year, CBH has increased group services, offering several evidence-based interventions and
developing an in-house curriculum that is tailored to the needs of the incarcerated population. Groups
include Creating Calm for Women/Men, Seeking Safety, Power Hour, and Expressive Art Program.
CBH has a strong collaborative relationship with Kern County Sheriff's Office (KCSO) and the Kern
Hospital Authority, Kern Medical. This facilitates access to holistic treatment for the incarcerated
population by addressing mental health, substance use and physical care needs while incarcerated and
continuing upon release while individuals reintegrate into the community. CBH also provides after hours
services for support to KCSO for consultation, discharge planning, and/or reporting out to the facilities
for 5150 evaluations if needed. Additionally, the Inmate Stabilization and Assessment Team (ISAT)
works collaboratively with CBH in-custody and Kern Medical to ensure medication compliance,
cleanliness of cells, manage the Direct Observation Unit, manage suicide watch and bed space, and
conduct daily welfare checks for all Administrative Segregated incarcerated persons. The ISAT
Sergeant and CBH Supervisor meet weekly to discuss cases and develop plans of care and treatment.
This collaboration has ensured CBH has a specific point of contact to coordinate access to care,
improve follow-through, increase medication compliance, consistency, and standardize referrals.

During this past year, KCSO closed CRF which redirected all bookings and releases to Lerdo Justice
Facility. CBH has worked diligently to increase engagement with outpatient teams during this transition
by developing protocols to ensure a streamlined process for visits as well as pickups when releases
occur. The team links released individuals to KernBHRS outpatient teams within the System of Care
including: Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Services, contract providers, outside agencies (Probation
and Parole), Community-Based Organizations (CBOs), and Kern Linkage Division Teams such as:
Adult Transition Team (ATT), Forensic Services Team, Supportive Pathways Opportunities (SPO) to
provide continuity of care upon release to the community. This collaboration and linkage to specialty
mental health and substance use treatment helps address severe and persistent mental illness and
focuses on the reduction and elimination of re-entry into the jail/prison system. Prior to individuals’
release from custody, CBH staff also work collaboratively to facilitate discharge planning for continued
treatment, such as immediate service appointments and bridge medications set up for post release.

Over the past fiscal year, CBH has facilitated bridge medications for individuals discharging from all
facilities (CRF, Justice, Pre-Trial), when transitioning to out of custody resources including the Access
and Assessment Team, Co-Response Team, KernBHRS outpatient teams, contract providers and/or a
support person. Discharges to the Psychiatric Evaluation Center (PEC) and or the Crisis Walk-In Clinic

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25 28




(CWIC) are provided for individuals who have been ordered released from custody but are not yet stable
and require additional support upon their release. CBH can complete 5150 evaluations in-house to
eliminate unnecessary transports to crisis services, preventing an increased use of inpatient bed space.
If a transport is necessary to either PEC or CWIC, CBH works with those teams and KCSO for the
coordination of this linkage. The goal is to provide continuity of care and a “warm” handoff to easily
access behavioral health services without a lapse between release and outpatient services.

Table 2

INTERVENTIONS
FY 2023/24

Court / Legal
1%
Psychiatric / Medication
26%

Clinical / Treatment
73%

*FY 2023/24 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated)

CBH provided a total of 29,313 services to incarcerated individuals during FY2023-24 (Table 2) inclusive
of treatment services that were court ordered or related to other legal activities, psychiatric evaluations,
medication management, other psychiatric/medication related services, clinical group and/or individual
treatment services.

Substance Use Disorder In-Custody Services

The KernBHRS in-custody substance use program is supported by KCSO in collaboration with CBH to
increase and obtain consistent engagement from participants in treatment. The program increases in-
custody services and out-of-custody linkage to treatment for all individuals within the jail system to
decrease recidivism. Staff providing substance use disorder services are certified drug and alcohol
counselors, Substance Use Disorder Specialists (SUDS) and Recovery Specialists (RS). During the FY
2023/24, four Residential Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) cohorts completed 209 groups with 52
participants and 49 graduating from the program.

Gateway has also been fully integrated into in-custody services to ensure rapport building, linkage, and
continuity of care for RSAT clients; successfully linking 52 of the participants with screenings and
scheduled appointments. The program utilizes evidenced-based treatment modalities such as Cognitive
Behavioral Therapy, Aggression Replacement Therapy, The Matrix Model, Seeking Safety, and Moral
Reconation Therapy (MRT). By participating in these groups, individuals learn pro-social skills and
resources to better equip themselves for real life situations they will encounter upon release. Individuals
practice skills and evaluate their effectiveness towards achieving their goals in preparation for

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25 29




challenges they may face during reintegration into society and gain skills needed to successfully
achieve their goals.

Adult Transition Team

The Adult Transition Team (ATT) serves individuals with serious and persistent mental health conditions
who have a lengthy legal history often with multiple incarcerations and those returning from State
Hospitals who have received competency restoration services. ATT works closely with the Kern BHRS
CBH team, and the primary point of entry is facilitated by an ATT liaison stationed within the Sheriff's
Detention Facilities. This staff conducts screenings and assessments while individuals are incarcerated
to assist with linkage to outpatient services. Individuals who meet the criteria for services with ATT are
linked with a Recovery Specialist to establish rapport and assist the individual in their transition from jail
to the community prior to release. Referral sources include self-referrals, detention staff, family
members, CBH, family advocates, probation and parole officers, the Public Defender, and District
Attorney’s Office.

ATT’s goal is to address the mental health and substance use of individuals served and reduce
recidivism days of hospitalization, incarceration, and homelessness. Throughout the last fiscal year,
ATT has continued to increase the number of daily services available for clients. ATT offers two groups
daily and focuses on community group outings which assist individuals with full re-integration into the
community. The weekly offered groups include Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (DBT), Socialization
Skills, Coping through Creativity, Relapse Prevention, Aggression Replacement Training (ART), Life
Skills, and Anxiety and Stress. Spanish-speaking groups are in development as well for clients whose
primary language is Spanish. This year, ATT continued to work collaboratively with housing providers,
families, Conservators Office, Probation, Parole, and other agencies to enhance support for individuals
trying to meet their basic needs after release from custody.

When treating individuals, ATT utilizes the following evidence-based programs and modalities:
Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (CBT), Solution Focused Therapy (SFT), Motivational Interviewing (Ml),
and Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (DBT). Staff have also been trained in New Direction curriculum that
utilizes CBT interventions to target criminal thinking and antisocial behaviors. ATT staff engage
individuals by providing case management and skill-building interventions in the field to improve critical
thinking, endorse recovery and stability, foster relationships, and encourage continued treatment. The
team has expanded the use of this curriculum in Spanish and is working to develop Spanish speaking
groups. Recovery Specialists assist individuals in accessing community resources, financial benefits,
and low-income housing, depending on the individual’'s need. After-hour services are supported by on-
call staff to ensure individuals’ needs are met beyond regular office hours, including in-person services
on weekends or holidays, to ensure adequate care is provided.

This year, the need for diversion services has continued to grow, increasing ATT’s diversion program
caseload. The ATT diversion program serves individuals with severe mental health conditions who are
referred by the Court after the commission of one or multiple serious crimes. This one to two-year
program is designed to reduce recidivism of individuals who suffer from serious mental health conditions
and/or substance use who are also involved in the criminal justice system, reduce incarceration due to
program failures, and enhance public safety by providing necessary mental health care. The ATT

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25 30




diversion program ensures linkage to appropriate resources including housing, transportation, and
benefits. Treatment is closely monitored by Recovery Specialists and Therapists and includes several
services per week to improve coping strategies, manage mental health, and maintain sobriety. Through
collaboration with CBH, ATT staff facilitates linkage to community providers for individuals who need
diversion services but do not require the intensity of ATT services.

Furthermore, ATT has strengthened collaboration with community substance use treatment facilities to
assist clients with comorbid diagnoses that require more intensive substance use treatment than the
team can provide. In these cases, ATT’s substance use counselor refers clients to residential facilities
to complete up to 90-day intensive programs that focus on skills to help individuals maintain sobriety.
ATT’s work with these treatment facilities ensures individuals receive intensive services to target both
mental health symptoms and substance use triggers to increase the likelihood of long-term sobriety and
success. This year, ATT’s increased collaboration efforts allowed several Diversion Court individuals,
who may have been otherwise unsuccessful in managing their addiction, to successfully maintain
sobriety and stability. These individuals have gone on to graduate from the program and have since
had their charges dismissed.

ATT measures AB 109 recidivism outcomes by comparing the number of days individuals spend in-
custody, in inpatient psychiatric settings, or homeless during the 12 months prior to service initiation to
the number of days in these categories while in treatment following release. The target goal is to reduce
the number of days in these categories by 30%. From July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 (April, May & June
2024 are pro-rated), ATT served 95 unduplicated individuals with severe mental illness, many of whom
had a secondary diagnosis of a substance use disorder and were homeless. In aggregate, the number
of days incarcerated decreased by 33%, psychiatric inpatient setting reduced by 30%, and homeless
days decreased by 9% (Table 3). KernBHRS staff continues to work together with the Homeless
Collaborative and partner agencies to coordinate efforts and action plans to address housing needs.

Table 3

Adult Transition Team
FY 2023/24*

HOMELESSNESS

| I | | | | | (
500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,500 4,000 4,500

Prior 12-Months = Since Treatment
*FY 2023/24 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated)

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Mental Health Systems

The Mental Health Systems, Kern ACTion is contracted with KernBHRS to provide intensive outpatient
treatment to AB 109 individuals who do not respond to traditional outpatient treatment. The service
delivery model known as Assertive Community Treatment model assists these AB 109 individuals with
severe and persistent mental illness which contribute to severe functional impairment in several life
areas, and who have a history of criminal justice system involvement. The goal is to reduce frequent
psychiatric hospitalizations, homelessness, reoccurring incarceration, and assist individuals in
developing meaningful activities in the community and to improve their lives through mental health
recovery services.

Individuals work collaboratively with Mental Health Systems Kern ACTion staff to develop personal
goals. Treatment consists of self-empowerment, skills building, staff role modeling, and side by side
support to name a few interventions developed collaboratively. Services are provided in locations that
meet the needs of the individual served in addition to services at the Kern ACTion office. The outpatient
team works closely to combine their knowledge and skills to provide the individual with the services they
need for as long as they need them, 24 hours-a-day, 7-days-a-week including after hours on call
availability.

From July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated), AB 109 individuals
received 1,087 individual therapy and rehabilitation services and 369 med management visits, and 401
targeted case management services. There were 21 hospitalizations and 27 incarcerations for these
individuals. There was a total of 53 crisis services which included MET/PEC/CWIiC contact. Additionally,
there were 4 homeless individuals. Table 4 notes an increase in hospitalizations since treatment. Case
reviews indicate this can be attributed to a small number of clients with several re-admissions.
Specifically, six clients were readmitted two or more times during this period. In addition, the high level
of acuity and issues surrounding medication adherence are factors in increased hospitalization rates.
Mental Health Systems Kern ACTion will continue to collaborate with Correctional Behavioral Health in
assessment and engaging individuals still incarcerated and in following individuals upon release from
custody.

Table 4

Mental Health System
FY 2023/24*

INCARCERATION

HOSPITALIZATION

HOMELESSNESS

10 20 30 40
Prior 12-Months = Since Treatment
*FY 2023/24 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated)

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Substance Use Disorder Outpatient Services

SUD Access Line

Substance Use Disorder (SUD) outpatient services are primarily provided for AB 109 assigned
individuals through KernBHRS contracted service providers. Individuals are linked to service providers
through the SUD Access Line. The SUD Access Line serves as the central screening and referral
service for SUD treatment throughout Kern County, encompassing both metropolitan Bakersfield and
outlying areas. It operates 24/7, offering clients the convenience of phone screenings and referrals for
treatment. In addition to the call center, the SUD Access Line maintains several physical locations within
the community where clients can walk in for in person screenings and referrals. In our effort to reduce
barriers to accessing services, clients can also visit any treatment locations directly, where providers
conduct assessments and admissions based on availability.

The SUD Access Line completes screenings and referrals for individuals who are in-custody, in
psychiatric inpatient settings and through direct referrals from individuals admitted to a community
emergency room due to substance use. In FY 2023/24, the SUD Access Line partnered with the
California Department of Corrections (CDCR) to target criminal justice involved individuals via a direct
referral path for individuals discharging back into the community with active medications to manage
their substance use disorder.

In addition to providing screenings and referrals to services, the SUD Access Line provides case
management to inmates participating in the in-custody treatment programs. SUD staff provide
community re-entry kits and assist with linkage to additional community service and resources. Upon
discharge, individuals are also evaluated by SUD staff to determine their appropriateness for direct
residential placement or placement within a sober living home to assist with successful completion of
outpatient services.

Table 5

SUD Access Line AB 109 Screenings
FY 2023/24*

# of AB 109 individuals Screened

*FY 2022/23 (April, May & June 2023 data are pro-rated)

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




As shown in Table 5 above, there were a total of 544 unduplicated AB 109 individuals screened for
substance use disorder treatment services through the SUD Access Line between July 1, 2023 to June
30, 2024 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated).

Despite seeing a slow return in SUD treatment enroliments to pre-COVID levels, the average number
of individuals in SUD treatment continues to increase. In the previous fiscal year (2022/23), there were
3,069 individuals in SUD treatment. In FY 2023/24, there are 3,335 individuals enrolled in SUD
treatment (April, May & June 2024 pro-rated).

Crisis Intervention Services
Mobile Evaluation Services

The KernBHRS Mobile Evaluation Team (MET) has historically acted as an adjunct to law enforcement
with community response, and it has been standard for MET to be dispatched through law enforcement.
Since the launch of the AB 109 Co-Response Team in June 2015, MET, in conjunction with KCSO and
the Bakersfield Police Department (BPD), has taken on a more proactive role in reducing crises and
recidivism. Historically there has been two Co-Response Teams in place: one for KCSO and one for
BPD. Since April 2022 there is only one Co-Response Team for KCSO, consisting of a law enforcement
officer and a senior-level MET staff member. Individuals served are High Utilizers of law enforcement
911 services who, without early intervention, may become hospitalized or incarcerated. This joint
response approach places the law enforcement officer and MET staff in the same vehicle, increasing
the level of collaborative crisis care services.

Between July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 (April, May & June 2024 are pro-rated), the Co-Response Team
provided initial contact to 55 new AB 109 and High Utilizers individuals. The caseload of the Co-
Response Teams included 49 AB 109 and High Utilizers individuals. Overall, the Co-Response Teams
provided 459 services to AB 109 and High Utilizers. One EMP individual was admitted to inpatient
psychiatric hospitalizations and 5 AB 109 EMP individuals were remanded to custody during this period.

Table 6

Co-Response Teams: AB 109s & High Utilizers
FY 2023/24*

#AB109 & HUS REMANDED TO CUSTODY

#AB109 & HUS ADMITTED TO PSYCH I/P
HOSPITALIZATIONS

#CO-RESPONSE TEAMSERVICES TO AB109 & HUS
#AB109S ON CO-RESPONSE TEAM CASELOAD

#NEW AB109 & HUS SERVED

100 200

*FY 2023/24 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated)

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




In addition to Co-Response Team services, traditional MET services were continuously provided
throughout Kern County. At the request of law enforcement, MET provides community-based crisis
intervention services including evaluation and transportation for involuntary psychiatric care. Between
July 1, 2023 and June 30, 2024 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated), MET and/or Virtual MET
responded to 4,652 adults with local law enforcement and 47 Virtual MET Responses to Adults (Table
7).

The Crisis Intervention Team

The Crisis Intervention Teams’ (CIT) goals are to improve officer and individual safety when the scene
is a mental health crisis and redirect individuals with mental illness from the Judicial System to the
Behavioral Health System. Additionally, Co-Response team aims to prevent and reduce recidivism for
AB 109 individuals who have substance use and behavioral health disorders from recidivism to
incarceration.

The CIT Electronic Monitoring Program Subcommittee is a collaboration between KCSO, BPD and
KernBHRS to assist Co-Response Teams find solutions for participants who have behavioral health
issues during their participation in the EMP program. The Co-Response team’s goal is to prevent the
AB 109 participants who have substance use and behavioral health disorders from recidivism to
incarceration. The CIT 40-hour class, CIT Advance Officer 8-hour class, CIT Steering Committee, CIT
Electronic Monitoring Program (EMP) Subcommittee, and CIT High Utilizer Subcommittee specifically
focus on closing the gaps between law enforcement and behavioral health agencies who often

encounter the same individuals in the community that need behavioral health services. Through the
collaboration of the CITs’ work, services are enhanced for the AB 109 population.

The CIT 40-hour class and CIT Advance Officer 8-hour class provide training to law enforcement on
how to identify behavioral health behaviors to assist officers in linking individuals to behavioral health
and substance use disorder services. The class provides resources that may reduce recidivism by
offering referrals to address their behavioral health needs. Between the period of July 1, 2023 and June
30, 2024, two CIT 40-hour classes for the Kern County Sheriff's Office were completed (October 2023
and march 2024), and three CIT 40-hour class for the Bakersfield Police Department (September 2023,
November 2023 and March 2024).

Access and Assessment Center

The Access and Assessment Center continues to serve as the centralized access point for adults
entering mental health treatment outside of the criminal justice setting. The Center completes
screenings on a walk-in basis for individuals seeking mental health services. Following initial screening,
individuals are scheduled for an appointment with a therapist to continue assessment for specialty
mental health services criteria. Individuals who meet specialty services criteria are linked to an
appropriate outpatient team, while those who do not meet criteria are assisted with linkage to a
community provider. In addition to offering support for those seeking mental health services for
themselves, Access and Assessment Center also provides community resources for walk-ins who are
seeking mental health services for a family member.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Access and Assessment Center also receives referrals from the Probation Department, Child Protective
Services, and Public Health. The Center provides routine and urgent mental health assessments,
linkage to outpatient teams, linkage to medication management services (in crisis situations), requests
second bridge medication for eligible individuals, links individuals to crisis services, provides
psychoeducation to individuals/families, educates individuals on how to navigate the system of care,
and collaborates with other teams within the system of care for quality/continuity of care. Individuals
who present with substance use challenges are directly linked to Gateway services within the Substance
Use Division.

During the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated), the
Center served 161 AB 109 assigned individuals, all of which were screened. Out of 161 screened
individuals, 153 were scheduled with assessments while the other 8 declined services entirely. The 153
scheduled assessments yielded the following results: 60 no shows, 23 did not meet specialty criteria
for mental health service (12 of which were linked to community providers), and 70 who met criteria for
specialty mental health services. All 70 AB 109 assigned individuals who met criteria were linked to
services within the KernBHRS System of Care, including contracted rural providers. However, 8 of the
70 individuals did not show up to their follow up appointments following linkage. Therefore, there were
62 successful linkages in FY 2023/24 through Access and Assessment Center.

Psychiatric Evaluation Center and Crisis Stabilization Unit

The Bakersfield Psychiatric Evaluation Center — Crisis Stabilization Unit (PEC-CSU) and the Ridgecrest
CSU (Ridgecrest Mental Health Urgent Care Center) are the designated facilities to receive involuntary
psychiatric holds from law enforcement and KernBHRS designated staff. The Ridgecrest CSU serves
the communities of East Kern. Individuals may be voluntarily admitted to the Bakersfield PEC-CSU or
the Ridgecrest CSU during a crisis. The PEC-CSUs determine if there is a need for hospitalization or if
the individual can be treated and released back to the community. Discharge from the CSUs is
coordinated with the individual’s current service provider for the community release, or a notification is
provided that the individual was admitted to a psychiatric inpatient facility. During the period of July 1,
2023, to June 30, 2024 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated), the Ridgecrest CSU provided
services to 9 AB 109 identified individuals. Between July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024 (April, May & June
2024 data are pro-rated), the Bakersfield PEC-CSU provided services to 77 AB 109 identified
individuals in crisis (Table 8). Many of these individuals had more than a single crisis encounter during
the fiscal year. These services contribute to the impact of this 24-hour facility.

Table 7

PEC-CSU AB 109 Clients Served
FY 2023/24*

438

195

FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 23-24
*FY 2023/24 (April, May & June 2024 data are pro-rated)

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Housing Support Services

Housing is often a significant barrier for individuals re-entering the community after incarceration. A
welcoming, recovery-oriented home environment is important for successful reintegration back into the
community. Within the Kern BHRS Adult System of Care, the Housing Services team provides housing
subsidy assistance services and makes recommendations to teams by identifying emergency and
temporary shelter placements. This assistance allows individuals to focus on participating in outpatient
treatment to include the goal of planning for permanent housing. FY 2023/24 (April, May & June 2024
are pro-rated), Kern BHRS secured a total of $210,000 for short-term and emergency housing targeting
AB 109 individuals released from jail and/or hospitalization who are at risk of homelessness upon
release from custody.

Table 8

Housing
Specl-alty Transitional AB 109 Totals Services Team: AB 109 Totals
Housing Short Term

Funding

FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23 | FY 2023/24 FY 2023/24 FY 2022-23 | FY 2023/24

Client Vouchers Claims
Processed “ 21 Processed € 1

Unique Client

Count 2 1

Unique Client Count 16 7

Amount Spent $30,480 $13,963 Amount Spent $2,485 $7,665

KernBHRS, along with partner agencies, meet with the AB 109 housing providers monthly to discuss
issues, concerns, and success stories. As part of these meetings, regular presentations are provided
to educate providers about community programs that can be beneficial for their residents. As part of the
Quality Standards Program, Housing Providers who receive individual referrals from KernBHRS
Housing Services are required to participate in regular site visit monitoring to support residents and
providers while addressing areas of concern. These site visits have proven to reduce the number of
complaints and foster positive relationships with housing providers.

Moving Forward

KernBHRS continues to promote a high standard of care and expand and shape services for AB 109
assigned individuals with a focus on the recommendations outlined in the CCP Strategic Plan, the Kern
County Stepping Up Initiative, and with consideration for capacity and service needs identified by the
Department. Correctional Behavioral Health and the System of Care are working closely with Kern
County Probation, Managed Care Providers, and Kern County Sheriffs Office for the upcoming
implementation of the CalAIM initiative for justice-involved individuals to assist with community re-entry
following release from incarceration. This initiative will promote post-release outpatient and community
linkage to ensure individuals’ physical, behavioral, and substance recovery needs are met upon release.
Through this initiative, KernBHRS will continue its efforts to address the specific needs of the justice-
involved population to improve health outcomes, advance health equity, and improve public health and
safety. Through these efforts, the department strives to help decrease rates of recidivism in

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25 37




hospitalization, incarceration, and days of homelessness for the population served, while promoting
independence and whole-person care to address previously untreated physical and mental health
diagnoses and/or substance use disorders.

FY 2024/25 Spending Plan

In FY 2024/25, KernBHRS has been designated to receive $8,684,862.00 in Public Safety Realignment
funding to support mental health and substance use disorder programming and administration. Over
the past year, the department has experienced changes in personnel and contracts, making it
necessary for funding shifts to support costs associated with in-custody mental health and crisis
services. For the next year, KernBHRS proposes to allocate costs as outlined in the chart below.
KernBHRS will continue to identify ways to improve upon the programs established for the AB 109
population. Additionally, KernBHRS will continue to develop, implement, and monitor data collection
methodologies to maximize resources and funding available.

Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services
AB 109 Budget Justifications / Spending Plan FY 2024/25

Salaries and Benefits

Service Position Annual Cost

BH Recovery Specialist $1,443,012.16
BH Therapist 9| $1,249,785.74
BH Health Unit Supervisor $205,209.88
Office Services Technician $263,738.66

Licensed Vocational Nurse $1,447,656.84
Physicians $600,000.00

Correctional Behavioral
Health-Jail Personnel

Contracted Services
Adult SOC Contractors $678,108.00
KLD SOC Contracts $2,000,000.00

Pharmacy Contractors $220,527.00

System of Care Oversight $640,922.68
Total Projected Expenditures for FY 2024/25 $8,748,960.96

CCP Base Allocations to KernBHRS for FY 2024/25 $8,684,862.00

Total Projected Expenditures Exceeding Allocation for FY 2024/25

(*KernBHRS to absorb this projected expenditure cost) (64,098.96)

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Employers’ Traininqg Resource

Employers’ Training Resource (ETR) has seen a tremendous increase in both referrals and enroliments
through the 3rd Quarter of Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-24. Year over year, referrals through 3rd Quarter
jumped from 485 to 611 and are on track to exceed last year’s total referrals (696) through the end of
June. Enroliments through the 3rd Quarter (105) have already outpaced the total number of enroliments
through all four quarters of last year (93) and we still have a quarter to go. The increased referrals are
a direct result of increased collaboration between ETR and Probation’s AB 109 division. We’ve also
utilized AB 109 funding to expand job development and training activities so that our enrollees have
places to “land”. This includes Paid Work Experience (PWEX) and On-the-Job Training (OJT) in addition
to traditional training opportunities.

Although six of our Transitional Jobs programs (paid work-based learning) ended in September and
were not refunded due to pressure on the multiple funding streams that supported them, we continue
to send participants to Recycling Lives and the Multi-Craft Apprenticeship with the local trade unions.

For FY 2024/25, we plan to continue to focus on what has been demonstrated to work, however we will
be shortening the length of PWEX from 16 weeks to 12 weeks maximum. This will help stretch limited
funding and create more urgency for work sites to move successful clients into permanent positions or
higher-level OJTs.

Most of the proposed Base Fund budget is allocated to staff costs, with a relatively small amount
earmarked for training, PWEX, OJTs and Supportive Services. The primary source of funding for PWEX,
OJTs, Training, and Supportive Services will be the remainder of our Growth Funds, additional Growth
Funds that become available, and any available Base Carry-Forward. After actual allocations are
known, we may request supplemental funding from the Contingency Fund to support additional
subsidized employment/training or offset cuts to the estimated funding from the State. It should be noted
that in addition to increased staff costs across every County department, the cost of subsidized
employment has increased due to increases to California’s Minimum Wage.

Proposed Budget for Employers’ Training Resource
FY 2024/25 AB 109 Plan

Program Staff

YEARLY
COST

$2,992
$9,894
$69,616
$268,712
$226,579
$1,979

POSITION NUMBER

County Administrative Office Manager
Workforce Development Program Manager
Program Support Supervisor

Program Specialist

Job Developer

Systems Analyst

Office Services Specialist $2,373
Office Services Technician $9,642
Total Program FTEs $591,787

W =2 =2V OAONIDN|—~

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Administrative Staff

YEARLY

COST
$4,000
$3,099
$8,224
$127,614
$25,956
$1,575
$6,486
$5,271
$1,148
$2,186

POSITION NUMBER

Chief Workforce Development Officer
Asst. Workforce Development Officer
Sr. Workforce Development Analyst
Supervising Departmental Analyst
Senior Accountant

Administrative Coordinator

Contract Administrator

Fiscal Support Specialist

Fiscal Support Technician

Office Services Technician

Marketing & Promotions Coordinator $6,439
Marketing & Promotions Associate } $1,420
Total Administrative FTEs $193,418
Total FTEs $785,205

[Ny N O SN A . B G RN ' ) [ SN Y 5% ) I N RN

Program Staff Salaries & Benefits $591,787
Administrative Staff Salaries & Benefits $193,418
Overhead incl AB 109 room $34,014
Participant Training/OJTs/Transitional Jobs/PWEX $58,139

Supportive Services $5,000
Supplies $1,000

Travel $500
$883,858

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




District Attorney’s Office

The District Attorney’s Office has seen increased workload responsibilities that have added to the
workload increases attributed to AB 109 and Proposition 47. The increased responsibilities have been
the result of advances made in the investigative process, new legislation that reopens cases for further
litigation, and changes to parole and custody credit calculations that have resulted in more prison
inmates being released and subsequently reoffending.

The advent and increasingly widespread use of police body-camera units has resulted in a large amount
of evidence on even the simplest criminal offense that must be downloaded, reviewed, and transcribed
in order to effectively analyze cases and prepare for trial. While such evidence is a welcome boost to
transparency and public safety, it places additional workloads on attorneys on both sides of the criminal
justice system. The increased workload required to prosecute cases applies not only to the most serious
crimes, but also crimes that have been converted to local custody qualifying sentences or reduced to
misdemeanors pursuant to realignment.

The proliferation of police body-camera evidence has resulted in a drastic increase in the creation,
storage, editing, discovery and retention of digital evidence on all trial types, including the varied crimes
impacted by realignment. The District Attorney has utilized CCP funds to cover not only staffing needs
to address the increased workload associated with the advent of digital evidence, but also to help obtain
and maintain the equipment required to store, manage, and deliver large quantities of digital files across
all case types.

State legislation continues to impact District Attorney’s Office, which, in combination with increased
caseloads attributed to realignment, has resulted in additional need for qualified attorneys and staff to
effectively represent the public safety interest involved in ensuring that validly obtained convictions are
not dismissed or vacated without opposition when the facts warrant it.

The District Attorney has made adjustments to counterbalance increased workloads, including the
introduction of diversionary opportunities for many first-time low level misdemeanor offenses, and
worked in partnership with the Public Defender, the Superior Court, and Behavioral Health to open an
avenue of mental health diversion and diversion opportunities for incompetent defendants or in
circumstances where treatable mental health factors played a substantial role in criminality in
appropriate cases. Additionally, the District Attorney continues to refine efforts to provide avenues for
diversion for misdemeanor cases involving minimal charges against less-criminally justice involved
defendants.

The total request from the Community Corrections Partnership for FY 2024/25 is $2,741,240.00. The
District Attorney’s proposal is to receive the same percentage of funding that was received in previous
years. As staffing and costs have gone up faster than the available appropriations, the District Attorney’s
Office does request that when/if additional funds become available, they are considered for additional
funding. This request represents the minimum amount necessary to maintain the existing level of
service within the District Attorney's Office and the Kern Regional Crime Laboratory in order to ensure
the public safety needs of the citizens of Kern County are met.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Position/ltem

Salary

Benefits

Total

Deputy District Attorney V

$185,897.38

$120,329.68

$2,449,816.48

Criminalist 1l

$119,259.59

$82,432.77

$201,692.36

Total Personnel

$2,651,508.84

Recurring costs, phones,
computers, licensing, Internet
access, cell phones, vehicles,
office furniture, training, Bar
dues, MCLE, office supplies, etc.

$89,731.17

Total

$2,741,240

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Public Defender’s Office

Realignment has Profoundly Impacted Public Defender Workload

The overwhelming majority of criminal defendants are indigent, and the Public Defender represents a
significant portion of these persons. Our mandate is Constitutional and statutory. Under the Sixth
Amendment to the United States Constitution, persons accused of committing crimes, who cannot
afford to hire private counsel, are entitled to appointed counsel. Pursuant to California Government
Code § 27706, the Public Defender is charged with representation of persons qualifying for appointed
counsel.

The Public Defender's approved FY 2024/25 allocation equals $1,370,620.00 or 50% of the amount
appropriated to the prosecution. The amount is intended to help our department keep comparative pace
with the tenacious, aggressive, determined and professional efforts of our counterparts in the criminal
justice system, the District Attorney.

Guiding Principles of Fairness Support the Department’s Allocation

Fairness and a “balanced allocation of resources” within the criminal justice system are recognized and
operate as the controlling moral imperatives. Kern County Strategic Plan (2008), Section I, p. 5,
Keeping Our Communities Safe; ABA Ten Principles of a Defense Delivery System (2002), p.3: “There
should be parity of workload, salaries, and other resources (such as benefits, technology, facilities,
legal research, support staff, paralegals, investigators, and access to forensic services and experts)
between prosecution and public defense.”

The Public Defender and the defense roles are reactive. Consequently, the impact of Realignment on
the department reflects and is directly traceable to the District Attorney’s work. Specifically, with the
exception of dependency, mental health and conservatorship work, the Public Defender’s workload is
a function of law enforcement activity in identifying, apprehending and prosecuting suspected
offenders. As noted, while the Public Defender does not defend all cases the District Attorney
prosecutes, 1 the Public Defender represents the significant majority of alleged offenders.

Moreover, while the District Attorney’s office performs certain functions with no analog to the defense
(e.g., review and filing of complaints), so too the Public Defender performs work not visited on our
prosecutorial counterparts. For example, lawyers with the Public Defender’s office must investigate
their own cases, while law enforcement often provides a completed investigation for the prosecutor.
Separately, deputy public defenders are expected to and spend substantial time and energy
interviewing and advising every client, including those housed at pretrial and correctional holding
facilities.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Implementation Plan

It is not possible to precisely align or attribute a particular defendant or crime to Realignment.
Consequently, the department utilizes the AB 109 allocation to meet — as effectively as we can — the

department’'s  significant  Realignment

driven

caseload.

Graphical

depiction of the

approximate/equivalent funding capacity provided by the department’s allocation is as follows:

Position Title

Number

Salary

Benefits

Total

Deputy Public Defender IV — Step 3

2

$317,324

$186,444

$503,768

Deputy Public Defender IV — Step 2

1.5

$233,327

$137,778

$371,105

Deputy Public Defender Il — Step 1

1

$109,727

$69,356

$179,083

Sr. Investigator — Step 5

1.2

$106,194

$70,424

$176,618

$38,056

$85,497

Legal Secretary — Step 5 1 $47 441

Office expenses, licensing, computers,
vehicles, phones, copiers, paper, etc.

Total

$54,549
$1,370,620

Material Disclosures - Consistent with Prior Years

Use of Funds: Pen. Code §1230(b)(3) provides in relevant part that AB 109 funds shall be used
to provide supervision and rehabilitative services for adult felony offenders. As in prior years,
the department’s intended use of the funds relies on the understanding that legal advocacy and

representation of indigent individuals in criminal proceedings may be appropriately
characterized as involving rehabilitative efforts and services.

Supplemental versus Supplanting: Pen. Code §1233.7 provides that AB 109 monies shall be
used to supplement, not supplant, any other state or county appropriation. The department is
informed and believes the CAO’s recommended Net General Fund Contributions are calculated
without regard to whether or not departments receive an AB 109 allocation. Consequently, the
department’s allocation request reflects supplemental rather than supplanting funding.
(Compare to a situation where the recommended contribution was reduced dollar-for-dollar
based on any subsequently obtained allocation).

Accounting of Funds: If approved, the department intends to again apply the AB 109 funds on
a pro-rata (i.e., quarterly) basis. As noted, while the department recognizes a significant
caseload is attributable to Realignment, it is impossible to identify all cases or alleged crimes
caused by Realignment.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Street Interdiction Team

The Street Interdiction Team (SIT) is a multi-departmental law enforcement task force consisting of
numerous law enforcement agencies throughout the County of Kern. SIT periodically plans and
operates enforcement teams in different regional areas to address specific community needs. Through
increased funding of AB 109, SIT narrowed its focus to help combat street- level crime. Financial funds
were made available on behalf of the CCP and have greatly influenced the process of current and future
SIT operations.

SIT operates in Kern County cities such as Arvin, Bakersfield, Bear Valley Springs, California City,
Delano, McFarland, Ridgecrest, Shafter, Taft, Tehachapi, and Wasco. In order to affectively address
street-level crime, SIT proceeds with the following:

e Focuses on improving collaborations with law enforcement agencies throughout Kern
County

o Establishes front-line operations in cities and towns throughout Kern County

¢ Meets on a monthly basis to discuss current AB 109 activities and impacts

In FY 2023/24, SIT completed a total of six (7) operations with a timespan total of 20 days and 204
hours in Kern County as of April 28, 2024. The participating agencies consisted of Arvin Police
Department, Bakersfield Police Department, California City Police Department, Delano Police
Department, Kern County Sheriff's Office, Kern County Probation Department, McFarland Police
Department, Ridgecrest Police Department, Shafter Police Department, Taft Police Department,
Tehachapi Police Department, and Wasco Police Department. All agencies worked with the Kern
County Probation Department as part of the Memorandum of Understanding with the County and were
reimbursed for overtime in relation to AB 109 SIT operations.

Depending on the criminal activity and need, SIT teams have conducted multiple operations in a specific
area over a short period of time. This has demonstrated a successful showing of force and cooperation
throughout Kern County. SIT operations draw an assembly of federal, state, and local law enforcement
agencies that provide a multitude of experience, information, and resources to ensure the most effective
regional policing strategies are put into practice. SIT offers regional law enforcement agencies some
relief in addressing AB 109 impacts by pooling resources for intelligence gathering, leveraging
resources, and providing agency collaboration and cooperation in tracking offenders as they move
throughout Kern County and the State. As a result, the decline of criminal activity has been noticeable
following the application of these operations. Data below resulted from SIT operations as of April
28,2024

Planned targets: 282

Total arrests: 68

Seized handguns/shotguns/rifles: 12

Currency: $73,954

Confiscated items: stolen vehicle, ammunition, a magazine, and a syringe
Seized drugs: methamphetamine, cocaine, fentanyl, and cannabis

The total request for FY 2024/25 is $435,524

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Community-Based Organizations Program

The CCP Public Safety Realignment Act Plan includes funds for organizations to provide services to
AB 109 individuals, with the goals of decreasing recidivism, enabling persons to reconnect with their
family members, and contribute to their communities. Recidivism, in this context, is defined as the
tendency to relapse into a previous negative condition or mode of behavior resulting in conviction of a
new criminal offense.

The Community-Based Organizations Program (CBO) provides flexibility to support the needs of the
community and respond under the direction of the Community Corrections Partnership (CCP). The
CBOs have assisted the Probation Department, Sheriff's Office, and KernBHRS in creating and
improving a continuum of care, allowing offenders to receive necessary services. Since the
implementation of the CBO program in FY 2012/13, the CCP has allocated $26,474,499 to CBOs
through Request for Proposals (RFP), Request for Applications (RFA), and Personal/ Professional
Services Agreements (PPSA).

The CCP allocated a total of $7,993,642 through a competitive RFP process, issued in June 2022 for
Calendar Years 2023 through 2025, to assist in the overall success of Realignment in Kern County.
This process focused on reentry services such as residential/transitional housing, employment and
educational programs, case management services and other evidence-based programs, proven
practices, and/or best practices aimed at reducing recidivism. Residential/transitional housing programs
create a structured living environment for individuals reentering the community. Employment and
educational programs provide individuals with valuable tools to succeed in the workplace. Case
management services develop and maintain case plans for individuals.

With the CCP’s recommendation, the County awarded contracts to the following organizations to
provide community-based services for AB 109 male and female offenders reentering the community for
a three year period, January 1,2023 to December 31,2025:

1) Bakersfield Recovery Services

2) Cottage of Hope and Gratitude

3) Freedom House Transitional Housing

4) Garden Pathways

5) Minnie Marvels Sober Living for Women and Children
6) New Life Recovery and Training Center

7) One Door

8) Third Tradition

9) STEPs

10) WestCare

Realignment has brought new challenges impacting services. In 2023, a lengthy waitlist began to form
for residential/transitional housing program placements. This was an unintended result of the
residential/transitional housing program contracts including a new increased housing stay from 120
days to 180 days for offenders housed through the programs. As such, Personal/Professional Service
Agreements (PPSA) were entered into with the existing CBOs to accommodate additional bed capacity

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25 46




and alleviate the waitlist. In addition, the loss of a CBO owner in Spring 2024 required the CCP to
terminate that CBO contract and enter into additional PPSAs with other CBOs to secure the lost bed
capacity and continuity in services. Despite these challenges, the CCP and our community partners
remain committed to providing quality housing and services to AB 109 offenders.

To ensure the CBO’s success in providing streamlined services, the Sheriff's Office, Probation
Department, and KernBHRS continue collaborating by doing the following:

Monthly collaborative meetings

Bi-Annual individual CBO meetings

Annual individual CBO meetings

Monitoring data tracker elements and quarterly reporting

CBO provider trainings

Exchange of key information for improved offender services

Tracking drug testing

Encouraging CBO representatives to interview potential candidates at the Lerdo Detention
Facility

Fostering an open line of communication and addressing provider's questions, concerns, and
requests as they arise

Monthly and/or quarterly monitoring site visits to CBOs in order

The CCP continues to focus on utilizing CBOs to help offenders gain access to the services and tools

they need to become productive individuals of the community. The CCP is committed to the partnership
with the CBOs and the collaborative work that makes Kern County a safer place to live. The request for
FY 2024/25 is $1,748,501.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Veterans Service Department

Veterans Justice Outreach

The Kern County Veterans Service Department (KCVSD) has historically had a dedicated Veterans
Service Representative (VSR) designated to provide benefit advocacy and case management to
veterans (and their families) at any stage in the criminal justice system. The initiative provides access
to Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) benefits, California Department of Veterans Affairs benefits, as
well as referrals to other service providers in an effort to eliminate barriers to successful reintegration
into the community and reduce the recidivism rate of veteran offenders. Since this employee was hired,
she has learned to navigate and successfully negotiate any challenge(s) that have arisen while assisting
this veteran population and is now responsible for departmental training of all new and current
employees. In an effort to further reduce barriers to benefits, the department has implemented CCP
specific training as part of its onboard training for all new employees.

Having VSR's trained and experienced specifically in this area of advocacy has not only allowed for a
smooth transition to benefits for the veteran once released from custody, but also increased accessibility
to benefits for their dependents while the veteran is incarcerated. Moreover, having multiple points of
contact for justice-involved veterans has allowed for a more robust relationship between our VSR's and
the other service providers in the veteran community.

The VSR's work with VA medical staff to enroll veterans in VA healthcare and arranges transportation
to the VA domiciliary on the VA Medical Center's West Los Angeles campus, as well as connect
veterans with the Vernon Valenzuela Veterans Justice Program operated out of the VA Bakersfield
Outpatient Clinic in collaboration with the public defender's office. Our VSR's work closely with California
Veterans Assistance Foundation to secure housing for those veterans who are experiencing
homelessness or are at risk of becoming homeless. Additionally, our VSR works with spouses of
veterans to request apportionments of the veteran's monthly benefits to ensure those funds are
distributed to the veteran's family while the veteran is incarcerated.

Since the implementation of the program, we have assisted 345 local veterans and family members
with 157 veterans assisted in FY 2023/24. Our SVSR assisted 30 veterans via virtual conferences while
assisting with their VA compensation or pension benefits. Furthermore, our SVSR has received
numerous correspondence and has replied with valuable information for veterans regarding potential
benefits as they prepare for release.

The KCVSD is excited by our continued success and looks forward to continuing to assist veterans and
their families as they navigate the criminal justice system and move forward on life's journey. Based on
our continued success and increased advocacy in the form of additional trained CCP staff, the total
request from the Community Corrections Partnership for FY 2024/25 is $172,929, which will be used to
provide funding for the multiple CCP qualified VSR's, 1 Supervising Veterans Service representative, 2
tablets and updated mobile data devices, as well as video-conferencing licensing to work with justice-
involved veterans and their families.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Veterans Service FY 2024/25 AB 109 Base Allocation

Position/ltem Total

Supervising Veterans Service Representative (FTE: 1.0) $112,599

County Veterans Services Officer (FTE: 0.25) $37,336

Business Manager (FTE 0.1) $15,201

Equipment & Supplies $7,793

Total $172,929

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Contingency Funds

The plan calls for the unallocated money, in the amount of $83,259 to be placed in the contingency fund
for unexpected expenses and/or additional items the CCP chooses to fund.

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




Allocation of Realignment Funds

The CCP has spent numerous hours developing a plan that addresses the pressing issues of
Realignment in Kern County. In order to achieve the goals, the allocation of AB 109 funds is based on
the CCP’s plan as described herein utilizing the FY 2024/25 allocation from the State of California.

The base allocation amounts for FY 2024/25 totals $64,047,649.

Base FY 2024/25 Base

Department/Entity Allocation% Allocation

Sheriff's Office 39.27% 25,151,512

Probation Department 35.56% 22,775,344

Behavioral Health & Recovery Services 13.56% 8.684,862

District Attorney’s Office 4.28% 2 741,240

CBO Program 2.73% 1,748,501

Public Defender’s Office 2.14% 1,370,620

Employers’ Training Resource 1.38% 883,858

Street Interdiction Team 0.68% 435 524

Veterans Service 0.27% 172,929

Contingency 0.13% 83,259

Total Base Allocation $ 64,047,649

County of Kern-Public Safety Realignment Plan for FY 2024/25




